
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING ***AMENDED***AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Michelle Cordes 
Councilmember Judy Hughes 
 
 
Monday, October 5, 2020 
  

Florence Town Hall 
775 N. Main Street 

Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-7500 

www.florenceaz.gov 
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays 

 
 

6:00 PM 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
October 5, 2020, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.   
 

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
Due to the risks to public health caused by the possible spread of the COVID-19 virus at public 
gatherings, the Town of Florence has determined that public meetings will be indefinitely held 
through technological means.  Meetings will be open to the public through technological means. 
In reliance on, and in compliance with, the March 13, 2020 Opinion issued by Attorney General 
Mark Brnovich, and in conjunction with the Emergency Proclamation signed by Mayor Tara 
Walter, on March 18, 2020.  The Town of Florence provides this special advance notice of the 
technological means through which public meetings may be accessed.  While this special notice 
is in effect, public comment at meetings will only be accepted through written submissions, which 
may or may not be read aloud during meetings.  
 
To attend the meeting noticed below by technological means, members of the public may: 
 

1. Watch Live:   
 

YouTube Live    
FlorenceAZ.gov/tv 
Locally on Cox TV Channel 11 
 

2. Join virtually using the link below:  
 

Join via ZOOM 
 
Notice is hereby given that the public may alternatively attend the public meeting in-
person in the Florence Town Hall Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main Street, 
Florence, Arizona.  
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBTvt8ya3WqI-siUct1vQzQ/live
http://www.florenceaz.gov/tv
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85292535328?pwd=emc5dEpLZWZxbkxmaVpIc2VYZTBxdz09


3. To call in and listen, please dial: 
 

Telephone: (346) 248 7799 or (669) 900 6833 
Webinar ID: 852 9253 5328 
Passcode: 166636 

 
Members of the public may submit written comments relating to this meeting to Town Clerk Lisa 
Garcia by emailing lisa.garcia@florenceaz.gov at any time until one hour prior to the posted start 
time for the meeting.  Please be sure to include your name and address for the record as well as 
the meeting date (and Agenda Item #, if applicable) in the subject of your email. 
 
If any member of the public has difficulty connecting to the meeting, they are invited to contact 
the Town of Florence Information Technology Helpdesk at (520) 868-7543. 
The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle  

 Cordes, Judy Hughes 
     

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council 
rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism 
made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be 
put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any 
matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and 
legal action. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS  
  

a. Public Hearing on a Major General Plan Amendment, requested by Grinder Sports Group, 
Inc., with permission by the property owner, Guardian Angel Holdings, LLC, to amend the 
Town of Florence’s 2020 General Plan to change the land use designation on 
approximately 357 acres from Low and Medium Density Residential (LDR and MDR) and 
Community Commercial (CC) to a new category of Sports Oriented Mixed-Use) for property 
located at the southeast corner of Judd and Felix Roads (Project Area 1) and at the 
southeast corner of Felix Road and the extension of Bella Vista Road (Project Area 2) and 
for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1746-20: A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, APPROVING A MAJOR GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENT FOR CASE PZC-20-21-MGPA. (Larry Harmer) 

 
b. Proclamation declaring October 2020 as Light Town Hall Purple for Domestic Violence 

Awareness Month. (Mayor Walter) 
 

c. Proclamation declaring October 4 – 10, 2020 as Fire Prevention Week. (David Strayer) 
 

mailto:lisa.garcia@florenceaz.gov
mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Resolution No. 1751-20: Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ACCEPT TRIBAL GAMING 
FUNDS FROM THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY IN THE AMOUNT OF $49,549 
FOR MOBILE DATA COMPUTERS. (Jennifer Evans) 

 
b. Resolution No. 1752-20:  Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN 
COMMUNITY ON BEHALF OF THE PINAL COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $7,200. (Jennifer Evans) 

 
c. Approval of the Lease Agreement between the Town of Florence, and the Bureau of Land 

Management, for 200 acres located around Poston Butte. (Hezekiah Allen)  
 

d. Approval to accept FFY 2020 Homeland Security Grant Program Subrecipient Agreement 
200306-01, from Arizona Department of Homeland Security, in the amount of $42,180 for 
the Florence Public Safety Interoperable Communications Project.  (Bruce Walls) 
 

e. Approval of the eight Returning Strong Grant applications received thus far, in the amount 
of $39.800.51. (Ben Bitter) 

 
f. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending August 31, 2020, in the amount of 

$1,512,618.99. (Rebecca Jimenez)  
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, to clean, 
prepare and install HA5 high density mineral bond advanced performance pavement 
preservation treatment  for CIP T-69 – Pavement Preservation, in an amount not to exceed 
$293,466.89 ($255,188,60, plus a 15% contingency of $38,278.29). (Chris Salas) 

 
9. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

a. Community Development 
b. Community Services 
c. Courts  
d. Finance 
e. Fire 
f. Police  

 
11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  

 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public 
body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7)   to 
consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 

 
i. Consultation, discussion and update on the MODUS Development Agreement.  
ii. Consultation, discussion and update on the Grinders Sports Group Development 

Agreement.  
iii. Consultation, discussion and possible contract negotiations and update related to contracts 

involving the Merrill Ranch project. 
iv. Consultation, discussion and possible contract negotiations related to the proposed 

Magma Ranch 3 project.  
v. Consultation, discussion and update related to the Mesquite Trails project.   

vi. Consultation, discussion and possible contract negotiations and update related to the 
Northwest corner of Hunt Highway and Merrill Ranch Parkway. 

vii. Consultation, discussion, negotiations and update related to Southwest Environmental 
Utilities. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3).  One or more members of Council may appear for part or all of the meeting including 
Executive Session telephonically.  
 
POSTED ON OCTOBER 2, 2020, BY MARIA HERNANDEZ, DEPUTY TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR 711 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE 
MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  
 

 
***AMENDED*** 

http://www.florenceaz.gov/


 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6a. 

MEETING DATE:        October 5, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:            Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Larry Harmer 
                                     Interim Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1746-20: Grinders Sports Group, 
Inc. Major General Plan Amendment PZ-20-21

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 11 
 
  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1746-20:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, APPROVING A MAJOR GENERAL PLAN 
AMENDMENT FOR CASE PZC-20-21-MGPA. 
 
The request is for a Major General Plan Amendment that assigns Sports Oriented Mixed-
Use land use designation to Assessor Parcel Numbers 210-44-0020, 210-44-0040, 210-
39-0050, 210-39-0060, and 210-39-0080 and establishes language for Sports Oriented 
Mixed-Use as a Land Use Category in the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan. 
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Request: 
An application by Grinder Sports Group, Inc., with permission by the property owner, 
Guardian Angel Holdings, LLC, for a Major General Plan Amendment (MGPA) to the 
Town’s 2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map to change the land use designation on 
approximately 357 acres from Low and Medium Density Residential (LDR and MDR) and 
Community Commercial (CC) to a new category of Sports Oriented Mixed-Use).  This 
change would facilitate a subsequent zoning amendment on the site.  The properties 
involved in this MGPA lie generally at the southeast corner of Judd and Felix Roads 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 11 
 
  
 

(Project Area 1) and at the southeast corner of Felix Road and the extension of Bella 
Vista Road (Project Area 2).    
 
The intent of this Major General Plan Amendment is to amend the land use designation 
on the noted properties to allow for the potential development of a commercial-recreation 
facility that would include a variety of recreational and ancillary uses.  A summary of 
potential uses presented by the applicant includes: 
  

 Fifteen Collegiate/Professional Sized Baseball Fields with fixed seating 
● One Collegiate/Professional Sized Baseball Stadium (up to 5,000 seats) 
● Fifteen Softball/Youth Baseball Sized Fields with fixed seating 
● One Softball/Youth Baseball Sized Stadium (up to 1,500 seats) 
● MLB style walk-out dugouts 
● Twenty Collegiate Sized Soccer/Multi-Use Fields with fixed seating 
● One Collegiate Sized Soccer/Multi-Use Stadium with Competition Track (up to 

5,000 seats) 
● Ten tennis courts and a stadium 
● Pickleball facilities 
● Approx. 180,000 sf Field House to include: 
 Twelve Collegiate Size Basketball courts - Each transformable into two (2) 

Volleyball courts 
 One Collegiate Size “Stadium Court” for Basketball and Volleyball 
 Fitness Center for Athletic Performance as well as Adult Fitness 
 Ten tennis courts and stadium  
 Cheerleading 
 Pickleball facility 
 Food Court and Restaurants 
 Executive offices and suites 
 eSports Arena 
 Rehabilitation Center/ Physical Therapy Center 

● Team/Player Housing 
● Satellite College Campus 
● Charter School Campus 
● Family Entertainment Center: 
 Miniature Golf Courses 
 E-Sports Venue 
 Bowling Alley 
 Movie Theatre 
 Go Cart Tracks 
 Race Car Simulators 
 Sports Simulators 
 Paint Ball Venues 
 Beach Volleyball Area 

● Hospitality Area: 
 Hotels 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 11 
 
  
 

 Restaurants 
 Office Space 
 Retail Space 

● Residential Element 
 Student Housing 

● Police Sub-Station in collaboration with the Town and County 
● Firehouse in collaboration with the Town and County 
● Water Facility in collaboration with the Town and County 
● Sewage Treatment Facility in collaboration with the Town& County  

 
The applicant is also moving forward with annexation of all properties included in this 
Major General Plan Amendment.  Once annexed, the closest comparable Town zoning 
to that enjoyed in Pinal County will be assigned to the properties.  The applicant will 
subsequently pursue rezoning the properties to a zoning classification that is supported 
its new General Plan designation, likely Planned Unit Development (PUD).  In addition, 
the applicant is currently working with the Town in preparing a Development Agreement 
that defines the development responsibilities of the applicant and the Town that would 
allow for the development to move forward. 
 
LOCATION MAP 

 
 
 
 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 4 of 11 
 
  
 

The properties contained within this application are noted below in green: 
 

 
  
A more detailed Area Map is attached to this report 
The conceptual layout of the proposed development is noted below: 
 

 
 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 5 of 11 
 
  
 

The 2020 General Plan does not currently have a defined category for a commercial-
recreation facility.  As such, this application will also establish the criteria necessary to 
establish said designation and it will be incorporated into the General Plan Update that is 
currently underway.  The suggested language for this new designation follows: 
 
Sports Oriented Mixed-Use (SOMU) 

The Sports Oriented Mixed Use District (SOMU) is established to provide a unique set 
of land uses and design criteria for a defined geographic portion of the Town, with a 
specific emphasis on providing multiple sport venue  opportunities for people of all 
ages, both permanent residents and visitors. To maximize the opportunity to provide 
the assortment of extended-stay activities, amenities, and services necessary for 
residents and visitors to this sport anchored area, multiple types of land uses must be 
coordinated in close proximity.  The SOMU District shall incorporate spaces for indoor 
and outdoor recreation,  transitory housing, employment opportunities, higher 
learning, shopping, and dining along with permanent residences and associated daily 
living services placed in – both traditional and compact – pedestrian-friendly 
neighborhoods.  
 
Provision shall be made for various modes of transportation. Development should 
allow residents and visitors to navigate many of their daily routines and desired 
destinations via bicycle or walking, but these residents and visitors will still likely 
choose to have access to a personal vehicle. Thus, multi-modal transportation 
accessibility and ease of connection to the district and the various uses within shall 
also be a central element.  
 
The SOMU District includes cohesive development that is substantially different from 
existing development elsewhere in Florence. This District should take on a separate 
ambiance and appearance that creates an authentic character. The architecture of 
buildings, the streetlights, benches, street trees, signs, public art and related public 
infrastructure, and the physical layout of streets and public spaces should all interact 
in creating a one-of-a-kind atmosphere. These design elements combine to create a 
quality of place that promotes long-term sustainable neighborhoods. 

 
Analysis: 
When the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council are considering an 
amendment to the General Plan, the applicant must justify the need for Major Amendment 
to the General Plan through a series of questions (Items within “quotes” are directly from 
the applicants response to questions contained in the application): 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 

 
“The current General Plan Land Use/Circulation classification is for a mix of Low-Medium 
Density Residential, Commercial and Office, which is incompatible with the commercial 
and residential mixed-use development proposed by this project.  Specifically, the current 
classification would not allow for the development of the Grinders Sports Complex and all 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 6 of 11 
 
  
 

related facilities such as hotels, restaurants, movie theaters, and other consumer 
establishments.” 
 
This proposal does not suggest any changes to the overall circulation system of the 
Florence General Plan. 
 
The land use designations on surrounding properties are as follows: 

 
Project Area 1: 

North:    Medium Density Residential and Community Commercial 
 

South:  Medium Density Residential  
 

East:  Medium Density Residential 
 

West: Low Density Residential and potential North-South Freeway Corridor 
 
     Project Area 2: 

North:  High Density Residential and Community Commercial  
 
 South:  Medium Density Residential 
 
 East:  Medium Density Residential and Community Commercial 
 

West: High Density Residential, Employment/Light Industrial, Community 
Commercial, and potential North-South Freeway Corridor 

 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals? 

 
a. Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; and 

 
b. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and intensity of 

uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and  
 

c. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community 
form and a burden on services and circulation systems? 

 
“The proposal conforms with land use goals of the Town of Florence and County of Pinal 
to develop much-needed infrastructure and public recreational space to serve the greater 
community. This development would enhance the water, waste, energy, commercial, and 
recreational infrastructure of the community. The proposed land uses are not 
incompatible with the community and will only serve to augment existing services while 
creating new services in areas of need. On the contrary, the proposed changes to land 
use will support the demographics of the area and the goals of the town and county in 
developing infrastructure and amenities to support the demand for amenities.” 
 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 7 of 11 
 
  
 

3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 
constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 

“The development is supported by access via public highways and other major access 
points such as international airports.  The site has access to high quality water sources 
and existing drainage infrastructure.  The site is within the service area for SRP and a 
nearby SRP substation will minimize the distance for electrical infrastructure.  Currently 
there is insufficient water and waste infrastructure to support the proposed development. 
We address this issue in detail in Question 4.” 
 
“We will participate with the Town of Florence to expand water, waste, and energy 
infrastructure capacity, which will also have the added benefit of serving nearby areas 
and reduce the strain on their current infrastructure.” 
 
4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to accommodate 

development that may occur as a result of the General Plan Amendment without 
system extensions or improvements? 
 

“The development will require both water and sewer system extensions and 
improvements.  New capacity will have to be developed for both water and sewer.  We 
will work with the town to improve the existing water wells and make them suitable for the 
development.” 
 
“We will work closely with staff members from the Town of Florence and County of Pinal 
on the feasibility of these improvements and as to what actions would be required to 
achieve these goals.  We will incorporate all advice and counsel into the planned 
development such that the capacity and quality of the systems, in addition to fully 
satisfying the needs of the project, the water and waste improvements can support 
existing and future development in the area.” 
 
“This will have the effect of relieving demand on existing infrastructure and enable future 
development to incorporate the new infrastructure, increasing the economic viability of 
future projects, thereby making the infrastructure into a net-positive contribution over 
time.” 
 
“Grinders is committed to working with the town and county to build out this water, waste, 
and energy infrastructure.” 
 
5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to provide 

adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set 
by the community? 
 

“Grinders has held preliminary discussions with the town and county to discuss the 
demand the demand for police and fire services that will be created by the new 
development.  We are committed to work with the town and county to work together to 
develop and construct a fire station and police substation.  While it is reasonable to expect 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 8 of 11 
 
  
 

that the development itself will create demand for fire and police services, the construction 
of new facilities with the input of the respective departments will augment the capabilities 
of the departments and reduce the existing strain on demand for police and fire services 
to the community, rendering the impact of the project on such services as a net-zero or 
net-positive.” 
 
6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, 

schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of future 
development without reducing services below community standards? 
 

“The Grinders Sports Complex will greatly enhance the State of Arizona, County of Pinal 
and the Town of Florence with its various entertainment, sports, recreation, hospitality 
and professional services.  The facility will help to eliminate the shortage of outdoor and 
indoor sports/recreation venues for the local community, schools, the town and county. 
The outdoor fields will create open space areas for recreational activities and provide 
health and fitness programs for the citizens.” 
 
“The local school districts will reap the benefits of high-quality sports and recreation 
facilities. In addition to the health and fitness aspects of the complex, the proposed Health 
and Rehabilitation services will provide immediate medical services to meet the needs of 
not only the athletes but also to the citizens of Florence and Pinal County.” 
 
“In summary, the current community services are inadequate to meet the current 
demand.  The development will greatly increase the town and county’s ability to meet 
current and future demand for recreational facilities for children and adults as well as 
provide medical services to the area.” 
 
7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation 

of projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and 
services to accommodate projected increases or decrease in population and 
development that could occur as a result of the General Plan amendment? 

 
“The Grinders Sports Complex will have a positive and healthy economic impact on the 
State of Arizona, County of Pinal and the Town of Florence with the programs and events 
scheduled for the venue.  The economic development will grow substantially in the first 
five years of its existence as the project establishes itself as a world-class facility.  These 
events and programs will provide a destination location for players, and families to travel 
to from the entire country.” 
 
“The project is primarily a commercial development though it will incorporate some 
residential units. The development will offset the following negative impacts on: 

a) Schools by lowering the net housing rooftop count, reducing the residential 
population of the area, and building new school facilities as part of the 
development. 
b) Traffic by building out additional roadways and expanding capacity to lessen the 
impact on current streets. 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 9 of 11 
 
  
 

c) Safety by constructing a new fire station and police substation and lessening 
demand for services. A recreational complex has different needs than residential 
units. 
d) Energy by incorporating the use of solar panels. 
e) Air quality by incorporating large-scale green landscaping including natural 
grass and tree planting.” 

 
“The development will also create the following positive impacts: 

a) Creating a high volume of sales tax revenue from multiple diversified revenue 
streams (e.g. hotels, a family entertainment district, sports and entertainment 
events at large venues, school facilities, and a medical facility) that will provide for 
economic stimulus and growth. 
b) Creating jobs in the hospitality, construction, service, and professional 
industries. 
c) Accentuate the town and county’s master plans for existing parks and trails (e.g. 
Active Transportation General Plan) by adding new hiking trails and bike-friendly 
transportation infrastructure. 
d) Satisfy pent-up demand for recreational facilities. 
e) Drive tourism and outside investment to the area, benefiting businesses 
downstream from the development (e.g. gas stations, restaurants, grocers, other 
small businesses.)” 

 
“Grinders will be a “One Stop Shop” satisfying the community’s demand for amenities 
while also serving as an economic growth engine for the entire area.  The project fits into 
the master plan with growth and development of infrastructure in the area as well as the 
residential growth.  The fiscal impact will also include the direct creation of over 2,000 
jobs for the area, as well as countless new opportunities that will flock to the region and 
area as a result of the continuous traffic flood to the area driven by the sports complex.” 
 
8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to sustain 

the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water quality, energy, 
natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the demands of present 
and future residents? 
 

“The Grinders Sports Complex will increase the need in the local area for growth with 
streets and highways to handle the demand of attending events at the complex.  The 
added visitor traffic will catalyze the local economy and encourage countless large, chain, 
and new businesses to invest in the community to meet the expanding demand.  These 
new businesses will fill and expand the needs of the current and future residents for 
essential needs such as housing, grocery and essential shopping, and new schools to 
meet the increasing population.” 
 
Grinders Sports Group has already made a point of emphasis to include a CO2 impact 
analysis as a part of the full traffic study that is to be completed.  Air quality is a vital 
reason so many residents have chosen to settle here in Arizona and why so many other 
continue to migrate into our communities year after year.  To address the CO2 impact, 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 10 of 11 
 
  
 

Grinders will plant a large number of long-life trees and natural grass among other green 
landscaping within and around the athletic facilities of the property and golf course.  This 
will create an aesthetically pleasing impact on the skyline for our neighbors and ensure 
the complex has a net positive emissions impact to our valuable air quality.” 
 
“The complex has also addressed the demand for water and sewage with retention ponds 
and an on-site water treatment plant in addition to utilizing existing infrastructure serving 
the current site.  The development will also expand infrastructure to meet current and 
future demand.”  Of particular note is Grinders intent to use artificial turf on 100% of the 
baseball and softball fields and all but 2 of the soccer/multi-use fields. 
 
“Grinders will incorporate solar panels to supplement energy generation.  The facilities 
will utilize quality-controlled lighting to minimize bleeding of ambient light and maintain 
the atmosphere of Arizona nights.  The complex will be serviced by electric vehicles where 
possible, including for public transit.” 
 
“The facilities will incorporate green building and recycling programs to increase 
sustainability of the construction and lessen the impact on the environment.” 
 
9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State Laws or policies substantiate the 

proposed amendment? 
 
“Current plans such as the Active Transportation General Plan recently passed by the 
Town of Florence Council substantiate the proposed amendment in that the project will 
accentuate and accelerate the goals of the plans to develop recreational public space, 
create economic growth and jobs, and maintain the natural and human resources of the 
area.” 
 
Findings: 

 The Sports Oriented Mixed-Use district (SOMU) designation has been identified 
for suitable areas within the Town’s Planning Area; 

 
 The properties in the area should be affected in a positive way by this General 

Plan Amendment as the amendment may encourage additional market base for 
employment and for retail goods and services; 

 
 The proposed Major General Plan Amendment follows the goals, objectives, and 

strategies of the Town’s 2020 General Plan; and 
 

 A public notification effort has occurred for this Major General Plan Amendment 
and staff notes that there have been few comments made on the proposed 
amendment. 

 
 
 



 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1746-20 Major GPA PZ-20-21                                             Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 11 of 11 
 
  
 

Public Participation: 
The Town has reached out to all Town citizens and other property owners though a public 
participation process that included: 
 

 Property Posting (Sign) – Notices of Public Hearing for a Major General Plan 
Amendment were posted on the properties; 

 Advertisements were placed in the local Town newspaper; 
 Two public hearings with the Planning and Zoning Commission; and 
 One Public Hearing with the Town Council. 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: 
After considering public comments, the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning 
Commission voted to recommend approval of this application at its meeting of September 
3, 2020 by a 4-0 vote. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Major General Plan Amendment PZ-20-21 and Resolution No. 1746-20 are not 
adopted. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Major General Plan Amendment PZ-20-21 and Resolution No. 1746-20 are adopted. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This is difficult to quantify.  The successful development of this, or a similar, project would, 
however, provide construction jobs as well as future full and part-time employment.  
Additionally, the retail/commercial portions, when developed, would be a source of sales 
tax to the Town.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Resolution No. 1746-20 
 Major General Plan Amendment Application for Grinders Sports Group, Inc. 
 Location Map 
 



 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1746-20 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A MAJOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
FOR CASE PZC-20-21-MGPA. 

 
WHEREAS, a Major General Plan Amendment application has been submitted to 

the Town of Florence proposing changes to the 2020 General Plan by creating and 
defining a new Sports Oriented Mixed-Use (SOMU) land use category and amending 
the Future Land Use Map to assign this category to Assessor Parcel Numbers 210-44-
0020, 210-44-0040, 210-39-0050, 210-39-0060, and 210-39-0080; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SOMU Land Use Overlay is proposed to be applied to the 

Future Land Use Map to an area of currently identified as Low-Medium Density 
Residential, Commercial and Office; and   

 
WHEREAS, a significant public participation process, including the holding of two 

public hearings of the Town of Florence Planning and Zoning Commission and one 
Public Hearing held by the Town Council, has been followed; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Florence has 

considered all public comments made at the public hearings and has forward to the 
Town Council a unanimous favorable recommendation on this application; and 

 
WHEREAS, the application has been considered by the Mayor and Council and 

the Major General Plan Amendment has been found to: be appropriate; be consistent 
with the goals, objectives and strategies of the Town’s General Plan; have a positive 
impact on the overall balance and mixture of land uses in the Town’s General Plan; be 
consistent with good planning principles and the Town’s vision; be beneficial for the 
Town’s orderly growth; and be favorable to the general welfare, health and safety of the 
public. Thus, a determination has been made that the Major General Plan Amendment 
should be approved.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona as follows: 
 
The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, approve the Major General 
Plan Amendment request PZ-20-21, subject to the following (underline signifies new 
text): 

 
1. This Major General Plan Amendment (MGPA) application proposes to amend the 

2020 General Plan to include a new Sports Oriented Mixed-Use (SOMU) 
designation within the Land Use Overlay Areas section of the Land Use Element 
defined as follows: 

 
 
 



 

Sports Oriented Mixed-Use (SOMU) 
 
The Sports Oriented Mixed Use District (SOMU) is established to provide a unique set 
of land uses and design criteria for a defined geographic portion of the Town, with a 
specific emphasis on providing multiple sport venue  opportunities for people of all ages, 
including for permanent residents and visitors alike. To maximize the opportunity to 
provide the assortment of extended-stay activities, amenities, and services necessary 
for residents and visitors to this sport anchored area, multiple types of land uses must 
be coordinated in close proximity.  The SOMU District shall incorporate spaces for 
indoor and outdoor recreation, transitory housing, employment opportunities, higher 
learning, shopping, and dining along with permanent family residences and associated 
daily living services and amenities placed in – both traditional and compact – 
pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods.  
 
Provision shall be made for various modes of transportation. Development should allow 
residents and visitors to navigate many of their daily routines and desired destinations 
via bicycle or walking, but these residents and visitors will still likely choose to have 
access to a personal vehicle. Thus, multi-modal transportation accessibility and ease of 
connection to the district and the various uses within shall also be a central element.  

 
The SOMU District includes cohesive development that is substantially different from 
existing development elsewhere in Florence. This District should take on a separate 
ambiance and appearance that creates an authentic character. The architecture of 
buildings, the streetlights, benches, street trees, signs, public art and related public 
infrastructure, and the physical layout of streets and public spaces should all interact in 
creating a one-of-a-kind atmosphere. These design elements combine to create a 
quality place that promotes long-term sustainable neighborhoods. 

 
2. Sports Oriented Mixed-Use (SOMU) shall be applied to the Town of Florence 

2020 General Plan Future Land Use Map for Assessor Parcel Numbers 210-44-
0020, 210-44-0040, 210-39-0050, 210-39-0060, and 210-39-0080. 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 5th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
  ___________________________ 
  Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 



79

287

79

Arizona Farms Rd

Judd Rd

H
unt H

ighw
ay

87

Hunt Hwy

PI
PE

LI
N

E 
R

D

COPPER BASIN RR 

PRICE RD

U
N

IO
N

 PA
CIFIC RA

ILRO
A

D
 

C
H

R
IS

T
E

N
S

E
N

 R
D

D
IF

F
IN

 R
D

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 79 

JU
D

Y
'S R

D

S
K

O
U

S
E

N
 R

D

WATER W
AY

G
A

N
T

Z
E

L
 R

D

SANDM
AN R

D

MAGMA RD

HIGHWAY 287 

H
IL

L
E

R
 R

D

BUTTE AVE

A
T

TA
W

A
Y

 R
D

DIV
ERSIO

N D
AM

 R
D

OLBERG RD

F
E

L
IX

 R
D

RANCHVIEW RD

LAKE RD

H
U

N
T H

W
Y

COOLIDGE AVE

JUDD RD

Q
U

A
IL

 R
U

N
 L

N

ROLLS RD

EYM
AN B

LVD

C
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 R
D

CANAL RD

K
E

N
W

O
R

T
H

Y
 R

D

B
IZ

N
A

G
A

 S
T

TANNER RD

S
E

L
L

E
R

S
 S

T

D
E

L
L

A
 R

D

Y
E

A
G

E
R

 R
D

RHEA RD

M
A

IN
 S

T

ORVILLE ST

HIGHWAY 87 

H
E

R
S

E
T

H
 R

D

ROBERTS RD

HERITAGE RD

RUINS DR

VAH KI INN RD

C
L

E
M

A
N

S
 R

D

C
O

O
P

E
R

 R
DBELLA VISTA RD

PA
D

IL
L

A
 R

D

LAZY R RD

H
O

H
O

K
A

M
 R

D

BRIGGS AVE

SUNAIRE DR

N
A

F
Z

IG
E

R
 R

D

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
 R

D

LARGO RD

PATTEE RD

OLD FLORENCE KELVIN HWY

ARIZONA FARMS RD

K
A

Y
L

E
Y

 C
T

PALMER RD

SW
E

E
T

W
A

T
E

R
 R

D
EN

G
LA

N
D

 R
D

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 F
A

R
M

S
 R

D

ADAMSVILLE RD

FRANKLIN RD

T
O

U
R

M
A

L
IN

E
 D

R

DELLA RD

HIGHWAY 287 

H
U

N
T H

W
Y

HUNT HWY

ROBERTS RD

A
T

TA
W

A
Y

 R
D

JUDD RD

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
9 

UNIO
N PA

CIFIC
 R

AIL
ROAD 

ARIZONA FARMS RD

PRIC
E RD

JUDD RD

MAGMA RD
N

A
F

Z
IG

E
R

 R
D

FE
LI

X
 R

D

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
9 

H
IL

LE
R

 R
D

ORVILLE ST

H
IG

H
W

AY 79 

U
N

IO
N

 PA
C

IF
IC

 R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
 

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
 R

D

F
E

L
IX

 R
D

PRICE RD

PI
PE

LI
N

E 
R

D

G
A

N
TZEL RD

CO
PPER BA

SIN
 RR 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
9 

MAGMA RD

SUNAIRE DR

MAGMA RD

A
T

TA
W

A
Y

 R
D

H
U

N
T

 H
W

Y

C
O

O
P

E
R

 R
D

S
K

O
U

S
E

N
 R

D

A
T

TA
W

A
Y

 R
D

ORVILLE ST

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

´

Legend

Town Limits

Highways

Centerlines

Tentative Preferred N/S Corridor

Florence Core

Anthem at Merrill Ranch

Grinder Sports Complex

INSET

Source: Grinder Complex, Grinder
Sports Group, Inc.
North-South Corridor, ADOT,
https://northsouthtier1deis.
hdrgateway.com/Home/Map

Grinder Sports
Complex

0 1 20.5
Miles

N
/S

 

N
/S

 

N
/S

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 5, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Mayor Tara Walter 
 
SUBJECT:  Domestic Violence Proclamation 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Domestic Violence Proclamation     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 2  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety   Statutory    None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclaim October 2020 as Domestic Violence Month.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On October 1, 2020, in recognition of Domestic Violence Awareness Month, Governor 
Ducey, lit the State Capitol purple and launched the 6th annual Lighting Arizona Purple 
campaign.  The campaign was developed to raise statewide awareness and provide 
important information to domestic violence victims.     
 
With domestic violence on the rise, it is important to face the difficult issue, raise 
awareness and  publicize the services available to those who are experiencing domestic 
violence.   
 
During the month of October, victim-advocate groups, centers, service workers, and many 
other organizations come together to connect those who work to end violence, to 
celebrate those who have survived and mourn those who have died because of domestic 
violence. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
 
 



Subject:  Domestic Violence Proclamation     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2  

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Proclamation  



 

 

 

 

LIGHT TOWN HALL PURPLE FOR  
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, Domestic violence is a pervasive problem that affects one in four women and one 

in seven men in Arizona, and stands in direct opposition to our No. 1 priority of protecting Arizona 
families and communities; and  

WHEREAS, In Arizona, every 36 minutes an officer responds to a domestic violence incident 
with a child present and every 19 minutes an arrest is made.  These numbers are tragic because 
domestic violence impacts our families, communities, schools, and workplaces on a daily basis; and  

WHEREAS, This is an issue that affects all ages, races, religions, socioeconomic backgrounds 
and education levels; and ending violence in the home, at work, and in the community requires vigilance 
and dedication from every part of our society.  We all have a responsibility to know the signs, to help 
the victimized and vulnerable and to speak out against it whenever we can; and 

WHEREAS, during the month of October, victim-advocate groups, centers, service workers, and 
many other organizations come together to connect those who work to end violence, to celebrate those 
who have survived and mourn those who have died because of domestic violence; and 

WHEREAS, on October 1, 2020, Governor Ducey will light the State Capital purple as a symbol 
of Arizona’s dedication to ending domestic violence and launched the month-long Lighting Arizona 
Purple Campaign.  Governor Douglas A. Ducey encourages Arizonans to stand with him as we send 
the unwavering message that domestic violence can stop and invites everyone to join in this effort by 
lighting their homes purple; and    

WHEREAS, Domestic Violence Awareness Month is an opportunity to stand with domestic 
violence survivors, to celebrate the progress made in combating these crimes, and to recommit to 
reducing domestic violence in their communities.  

NOW THEREFORE, I, Tara Walter, Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona, by virtue of the 
authority vested in me, do hereby proclaim and declare October 2020 as “DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
AWARENESS MONTH” and in support of this worthy cause, will have Town hall lit purple throughout 
the month of October 2020 and do hereby call upon all the citizens to light their homes purple in support 
of this effort.   

In witness thereof, I hereby set my hand and affix the Official Seal of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 5th day of October 2020.      

        __________________________ 
                                                                               Tara Walter, Mayor                                           
ATTEST: 
 
____________________ 
Maria Hernandez 
Deputy Town Clerk 



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM
6c.  

MEETING DATE:  October 5, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  2020 Fire Prevention Week Proclamation 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject: Fire Prevention Week Proclamation  Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Proclaim October 4 – 10, 2020 as Fire Prevention Week.    
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
In a fire, mere seconds can mean the difference between a safe escape and a tragedy. 
Fire safety isn’t just for school children. Teenagers, adults, and the elderly are also at risk 
in fires, making it important for every member of the community to take some time every 
October during Fire Prevention Week to make sure they understand how to stay safe in 
case of a fire. The purpose of the Proclamation to promote fire safety and community risk 
reduction in the Town of Florence. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:  
 
Not applicable  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:  
 
Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
2020 NFPA Fire Prevention Week Proclamation 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 



   
 

 
 

FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 
OCTOBER 4 - 10, 2020 

 
WHEREAS, The Town of Florence, Arizona,  is committed to ensuring the safety 

and security of all those living in and visiting Florence; and 
 

WHEREAS, Fire is a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and 
homes are the locations where people are at greatest risk from fire; and 
 

WHEREAS, Home fires killed more than 2,630 people in the United States in 2017, 
according to the National Fire Protection Association® (NFPA®), and fire departments in 
the United States responded to 357,000 home fires; and 
 

WHEREAS, Cooking is the leading cause of home fires in the United States where 
fire departments responded to more than 173,200 annually between 2013 and 2017; and   
 

WHEREAS, Two of every five home fires start in the kitchen with 31% of these 
fires resulting from unattended cooking; and  
 

WHEREAS, More than half of reported non-fatal home cooking fire injuries 
occurred when the victims tried to fight the fire themselves; and 
 

WHEREAS, Children under five face a higher risk of non-fire burns associated with 
cooking than being burned in a cooking fire; and 
 

WHEREAS, Florence’s residents should stay in the kitchen when frying food on 
the stovetop, keep a three-foot kid-free zone around cooking areas and keep anything 
that can catch fire away from stove tops; and  
 

WHEREAS, Residents who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan 
are more prepared and will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and 
 

WHEREAS, Working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires in 
half; and 
 

WHEREAS, Florence’s first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence 
of home fires and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; and 
 

WHEREAS, Florence’s residents are responsive to public education measures 
and are able to take personal steps to increase their safety from fire, especially in their 
homes; and 
 



 
 

WHEREAS, The 2020 Fire Prevention Week theme TM, “Serve Up Fire Safety in 
the Kitchen!!” effectively serves to remind us to stay alert and use caution when cooking 
to reduce the risk of kitchen fires. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Tara Walter, Mayor of Florence, Arizona, do hereby 
proclaim October 4-10, 2020, as Fire Prevention Week throughout this Town, and I urge 
all the people of Florence by checking their kitchens for fire hazards and using safe 
cooking practices during Fire Prevention Week 2020, and to support the many public 
safety activities and efforts of Florence fire and emergency services. 
 

Dated this 5th day of October 2020. 
 

 
 
 
 __________________________ 
        Tara Walter, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:         
 

      
_____________________  
Maria Hernandez,  
Deputy Town Clerk       



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a.  

MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1751-20: to accept Grant Funds  
Recommended for Award from the Gila River Indian Community

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1751-20 GRIC Grant                                                              Meeting Date: October 5, 2020  
Page 1 of 2 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1751-20:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ACCEPT 
TRIBAL GAMING FUNDS FROM THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $49,549 FOR MOBILE DATA COMPUTERS. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) may award tribal gaming funds to the Town of 
Florence during its 2020 grant cycle.  The Fire Department has applied for $49,549 in 
grant funding to purchase 10 mobile data computers.  The grant application has been 
recommended for award by GRIC staff.  Before the grant application is presented to the 
GRIC Community Council for final approval, GRIC requires a resolution from the 
municipality to acknowledge its willingness to accept the gaming funds for the specified 
use.  The resolution states the Town’s acceptance of the grant funds to purchase 
mobile data computers for the Fire Department.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town will not accept gaming funds from GRIC. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will accept gaming funds from GRIC. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1751-20 GRIC Grant                                                              Meeting Date: October 5, 2020  
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Gila River Indian Community may award $49,549 to the Town of Florence for the 
purchase of mobile data computers. There is no match required. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1751-20 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1751-20 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ACCEPT TRIBAL GAMING 
FUNDS FROM THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $49,549 FOR MOBILE DATA COMPUTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community has reviewed applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence requests funding from the Gila River Indian 
Community for Fire Department Mobile Data Computers; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence Fire Department is dedicated to promoting 

public safety for its citizens and local businesses. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, that funds will be accepted from the Gila River Indian Community for 
Shared Revenue Funds in the amount of $49,549. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 5th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1751-20 is a true, correct and 
accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 5th day of October, 2020 at which a quorum was present and voted 
in favor of said Resolution No. 1751-20. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b.  

MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1752-20: to accept funds on behalf of 
the Pinal County Historical Society for an Award From the Gila 
River Indian Community.  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Resolution No. 1752-20 GRIC Grant for Historical Society                 Meeting Date: October 5, 2020  
Page 1 of 2 

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1752-20:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, SUPPORTING APPLICATION TO THE GILA 
RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY ON BEHALF OF THE PINAL COUNTY HISTORICAL 
SOCIETY IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,200. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) may award tribal gaming funds to the Pinal 
County Historical Society during its 2020 grant cycle.  The GRIC Grant Program 
prohibits non-profit agencies from receiving direct grant awards and requires the funds 
to be passed through a municipality.  The Pinal County Historical Society requests the 
Town of Florence receive the funds on their behalf in the amount of $7,200.  These 
funds will be used to upgrade the security and fire alarm systems in the museum. The 
Town will receive the funds from GRIC and issue a check to the Pinal County Historical 
Society. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town will not accept gaming funds from GRIC on behalf of the Pinal County 
Historical Society. 
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1752-20 GRIC Grant for Historical Society                 Meeting Date: October 5, 2020  
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will accept gaming funds from GRIC on behalf of the Pinal 
County Historical Society. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1752-20 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1752-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
SUPPORTING APPLICATION TO THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY ON 
BEHALF OF THE PINAL COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $7,200. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community is accepting applications for the distribution 

of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to sponsor an application for the Pinal County 
Historical Society, which seeks funding to upgrade the security and fire alarm systems in their 
museum; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence wishes to assist organizations such as the Pinal County 
Historical Society, which is dedicated to collecting, preserving, interpreting, and disseminating 
relevant and historical materials about the southwest and especially Florence; and 
  

WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Florence will realize the benefit of this preservation 
effort because it will enhance the quality of life in the community. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, as follows: 
 

Support for the Pinal County Historical Society application to the Gila River Indian 
Community for $7,200. in Shared Revenue Funds is granted. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 5th day of October 2020. 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
        Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________   ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of Florence, 
certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1752-20 is a true, correct and accurate copy as passed 
and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town Council, held on the 5th day of October, 
2020 at which a quorum was present and voted in favor of said Resolution No. 1752-20. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7c.  

MEETING DATE:  October 5, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Hezekiah Allen 
                                     Community Services Director   
 
SUBJECT:  Poston Butte Preserve Lease Agreement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Poston Butte Preserve Lease Agreement                                                     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 
 

  Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Service   Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve the Lease Agreement between the Town of Florence, and the Bureau of Land 
Management, for 200 acres located around Poston Butte. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Poston Butte is the approximately 153-acre parcel acquired from the Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) through the Recreation and Public Purposes Act.  The original 
patent was given to the Pinal County Historical Society in 1964.  The patent, with BLM 
approval, was transferred from the Pinal County Historical Society to the Town of 
Florence in 2006. 
 
The Town applied for an additional 200 acres from BLM adjacent to the original 
patented land to expand for recreational use.  The primary use would be open space 
trails and passive programming for outdoor recreation, along with a restroom/classroom 
building and vehicular parking for approximately 100 vehicles. 
 
The Lease Agreement (PA) is a legal document that outlines the land being leased, and 
certain criteria outlined by legislation (Recreation and Public Purposes Act), information 
contained in the Programmatic Agreement and the Historic Preservation Treatment 
Plan, the latter two were previously authorized by Council.  



Subject:  Poston Butte Preserve Lease Agreement                                                     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote no would void the current Lease Agreement on the table provided by the Bureau 
of Land Management and preclude the Town from leasing 200 acres around Poston 
Butte.   
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Town would lease 200 acres adjoining to the Towns current 153 acres creating a 
353-acre historic and natural preserve.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Eventually the Town will need to phase in improvement projects consisting of trails, 
restrooms, and amenities. For which, funding could be obtained through grants and 
capital budgeting.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Poston Butte R&PP Lease 
Exhibit A Civil Rights Stipulations 
Exhibit B Additional Terms and Conditions  
Proposed Activities  
 



Form 2912-1
(May 2001)

UNITED STATES 
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 
Serial Number 

RECREATION OR PUBLIC PURPOSES LEASE 
Act of June 14,1926, as amended (43 U.S.C. 869 et. seq.) 

This lease entered into on this 
authorized officer of the Bureau of Land Management, and 

day of , 20 , by the United States of America, the lessor, through the 

, hereinafter 
called the lessee, pursuant and subject to the terms and provisions of the Recreation and Public Purposes Act and to all reasonable regulations of the 
Secretary of the Interior now or hereafter in force when not inconsistent with any express and specific provisions herein, which are made a part 
hereof, 

Sec. 1. The lessor, in consideration of the rents to be paid and the conditions to be observed as hereinafter set forth, does hereby grant and lease to the 
lessee the right and privilege of using for the purposes hereinafter set forth in the following-described lands: 

containing acres, together with the right to construct and maintain thereon all buildings or other improvements necessary for such use 
for a period of years, the rental to be $ per annum. If, at the expiration date of the lease the authorized officer shall determine 
that the lease may be renewed, the lessee herein will be accorded the privilege of renewal upon such terms as may be fixed by the lessor. The lessee may 
use the premises for 

There are reserved to the United States all mineral deposits in 
said lands, together with the right to mine and remove the same under 
applicable laws and regulations to be established by the Secretary of 
the Interior. 

The lessor reserves the right of entry, or use, by 

(a) any authorized person, upon the leased area and into the 

(b) Federal agents and game wardens upon the leased area on 

(c) the United States, its permittees and licensees, to mine and 

buildings constructed thereon for the purpose of inspection; 

official business; 

remove the mineral deposits referred to in Sec. 2, above. 

Sec. 4. In consideration of the foregoing, the lessee hereby agrees: 

(a) To improve and manage the leased area in accordance with the 
plan of development and management designated as 

and approved by an authorized officer on 
or any modification thereof hereinafter approved by an authorized 
officer, and to maintain all improvements, during the term of this lease, 
in a reasonably good state of repair. 

(b) To pay the lessor the annual rental above set forth in advance 
during the continuance of this lease. 

WITNESSETH:

Sec. 2.

Sec. 3.

(Continued on page 2)



(c) Not to allow the use of the lands for unlawful purposes or for any 
purpose not specified in  this lease unless consented to under its terms: 
not to prohibit or restrict, directly or indirectly, or permit its agents, 
employees, contractors (including, without limitation, lessees, sub- 
lessees, and permittees), to prohibit or restrict the use of any part of the 
leased premises or any  of the facilities thereon by any person because of 
such person’s race, creed, color, sex, or national origin. 

(d) Not to assign this lease or to change the use of the land without 
first receiving the consent of the authorized officer of the Bureau of 
Land Management. 

That this lease may be terminated after due notice to the lessee 
upon a finding by the authorized officer that the lessee had failed to 
comply with the terms of the lease; or has  failed to use the leased lands 
for the purposes specified in this lease for a period of consec- 
utive years; or that  all or part of the lands is being devoted to some other 
use not consented to by the authorized officer; or that the lessee has not 
complied with his development and management plans referred to in 
subsection 4(a). 

That upon the termination of this lease by expiration, surrender, 
or cancellation thereof, the lessee, shall surrender possession of the 
premises to the United States in  good condition and shall comply with 
such provisions and  conditions respecting the removal of the improve- 
ments of and  equipment on the property as may be made by an 
authorized officer. 

To take such reasonable steps as may be needed to protect the 
surface of the leased area and the natural resources and improvements 
thereon. 

(h) Not to cut timber on the leased area without prior permission of, 
or in violation of the provisions and conditions made by an authorized 
officer. 

(i) That nothing contained in this lease shall restrict the acquisition, 
granting, or use of permits or rights-of-way under existing laws by a n  
authorized Federal officer. 

Sec. 5. Equal Opportunity Clause. Lessee will comply with all provi- 
sions of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24,1965, as amended, 
and the rules, regulations, a n d  relevant orders of the Secretary of 
Labor. Neither lessee nor lessee’s subcontractors shall maintain 
segregated facilities. 

FOR EXECUTION BY LESSEE 

I N  WITNESS WHEREOF: 

Equal Access Clause. Lessee shall comply with all provisions of 
the American Disabilities Act of July 26, 1990 the Architectural Barriers 
Act of  1968 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended. These Acts require that programs and public facilities 
constructed or renovated he accessible to and usable by persons with 
disabili tics. 

The lessee may surrender this lease or any part thereof by filing 
a written relinquishment in the appropriate BLM office. The relin- 
quishment shall be subject to the payment of all accrued rentals and to 

relinquishment in accordance with the applicable lease terms in 
subsections and 4(g) and the appropriate regulations. 

The lessee further agrees to comply with and be bound by those 
additional terms and conditions identified as 

and which are made a part hereof. 

Sec. 9. No Member of, or Delegate to, the Congress, or Resident 
Commissioner, after his election or appointment, and either before or 
after he has qualified, and during his continuance in  office, and no 
officer, agent, or employee of the Department of the Interior, except as 
otherwise provided in 43 CFR, Part  7, shal l  be admitted to any share or 
part of this lease, or derive a n y  benefit that may arise there from, and 
the provisions of Title 18 U.S.C. Sections 431-433, relating to con- 
tracts, enter into and form a part of this lease, so far the same may be 
applicable. 

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

By 
(Signature of Lessee’s Authorized Officer) (Authorized Officer) 

(Signature of Witness) (Title) 

(Date) (Date) 

This form does not constitute an information collection as defined by 44 U.S.C. 3502 and therefore does not require OMB approval. 

(e) 

( f )  

(g) 

Sec. 6.

Sec. 7.

Sec. 8.

4(f) 

(Form 2912-1, page 2)

the continued obligation of the lessee to place the lands in condition for

as



EXHIBIT A 

Civil Rights of 1964 Stipulations 

The lease of the herein described lands is subject to the following reservations, 
conditions, and limitations: 

(1) Town of Florence or its successor in interest shall comply with and shall not violate 
any of the terms or provision of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 
241), and requirements of the regulations, as modified or amended, of the 
Secretary of the Interior issued pursuant thereto (43 CRF 17) for the period that 
the lands leased herein are used for the purpose for which the grant was made 
pursuant to the act cited above, or for another purpose involving the provision of 
similar services or benefits. 
 

(2) If Town of Florence or its successor in interest does not comply with terms or 
provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the requirements imposed 
by the Department of the Interior issued pursuant to that title, during the period 
during which the property described herein is used for the purpose for which the 
lease was made pursuant to the act cited above, or for another purpose involving 
the provision of similar services or benefits, the Secretary of the Interior  or his 
delegate may declare the terms of this lease terminated in whole or in part.  
 

(3) Town of Florence, by acceptance of this lease, agrees for itself or its successors 
in interest that a declaration of termination in whole or in part of this lease shall, at 
the option of the Secretary or his delegate, operate to revest in the United States 
full title to the lands involved in the declaration. 
 

(4) The United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of the 
requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the terms and 
conditions of the regulations, as modified or amended, of the Secretary of the 
Interior issued pursuant to said Title VI, in the event of their violation by Town of 
Florence.  
 

(5) Town of Florence or it successor in interest will, upon request of the Secretary of 
the Interior or his delegate, post and maintain on the property leased by this 
document signs and posters bearing a legend concerning the applicability of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 to the area or facility leased. 
 

(6) The reservations, conditions, and limitations contained in paragraphs (1) through 
(5) shall constitute a covenant running with the land, binding on Town of Florence 
and its successors in interest for the period for which the land described herein is 
used for the purpose for which this lease is made, or for another purpose involving 
the provision of similar services or benefits. 



 
(7) The assurances and covenant required by sections (1) through (6) above shall not 

apply to ultimate beneficiaries under the program for which lease is made.  
“Ultimate beneficiaries” are identified in 43 CFR 17.12 (h). 



EXHBIT B 
 

Additional Terms and Conditions 
 

In connection with Recreation and Public Purposes Application AZA-37401-01, the Town 
of Florence agrees to the following terms and conditions. 
 
(1) All applicable regulations in accordance with 43 CRF 2912. 
 
(2) To maintain the lands and facilities open to use by the public for the purposes set 

forth in section 1 of the lease without discrimination or favor. 

(3) Any cultural and/or paleontological resource (historic or prehistoric site or object) 
discovered by the lessee, or any person working on his behalf, on public or Federal 
land shall be immediately reported to the AO.  Lessee shall suspend all operations 
in the immediate area of such discovery until written authorization to proceed is 
issued by the AO.  An evaluation of the discovery will be made by the AO to 
determine appropriate actions to prevent the loss of significant cultural or scientific 
values.  The lessee will be responsible for the cost of evaluation and any decision 
as to proper mitigation measures will be made by the AO after consulting with the 
lessee. 

(4) If in connection with operations under the authorization, any human remains, 
funerary objects, sacred objects or objects of cultural patrimony as defined in the 
Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (P.L. 101-601; 104 Stat. 
3048; 25 U.S.C. 3001) are discovered, the lessee shall stop operations in the 
immediate area of the discovery, protect the remains and objects, and immediately 
notify the authorized officer.  The lessee shall continue to protect the immediate area 
of the discovery until notified by the authorized officer that operation may resume.  

(5) To make no more than a reasonable charge for the use of facilities on the land 
(whether by concession or otherwise), and to charge no more for entrance to and 
use of the area than is charged at other comparable installations managed by state 
and local agencies.  If there is to be a charge for use of the lands or facilities, the 
lessee will submit to the Bureau of Land Management a schedule of charges.  All 
charges shall be subject to review for conformance with this requirement and 
appropriate modification by the Secretary of the Interior or his delegate after 
reasonable notice and opportunity for hearing.  

(6) All design, material, and construction, operation, maintenance, and termination 
practices shall be in accordance with safe and proven engineering practices.  

(7) Lessee shall remove only the minimum amount of vegetation necessary for the 
construction, maintenance, and operation of the right-of-way. Topsoil shall be 
conserved during excavation and reused as cover on disturbed areas to facilitate 
regrowth of vegetation. 

(8) Construction holes left open overnight shall be covered. Covers shall be secured in 
place and shall be strong enough to prevent livestock or wildlife from falling through 
and into a hole.  

(9) Construction sites shall be maintained in a sanitary condition at all times; waste 
materials at those sites shall be disposed of promptly at an appropriate waste 
disposal site.  "Waste" means all discarded matter including, but not limited to, 



human waste, trash, garbage, refuse, oil drums, petroleum products, ashes, and 
equipment. 

(10) To maintain in a satisfactory condition the facilities constructed on the lands.  

(11) The lessee shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations 
whether or not specifically mentioned within this lease. 

(12) This lease reserves to the Secretary of the Interior, or his lawful delegate, the right 
to grant additional ROWs or permits for compatible uses over, under or adjacent to 
the land involved in this lease. 

(13) The Town of Florence understands that they may exercise the option to request 
patent to the lands in the lease, after issuance, upon substantial completion of the 
proposed improvements and facilities.  Such option may be excised at any time 
during the term of the lease.  

 



Service Layer Credits: Esri, USDA Farm
Service Agency

[
[

[[ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [

[
[

[
[

[ [ [ [ [ [

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[ [ [ [
[

[
[

[
[

[

[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[ [ [ [ [ [ [

[ [ [ [ [[ [ [ [

[

[ [[
[

[

[

[

[

[

HI
S C

OX
L N

N
C O OR S

R D

E LA RGO RD

W HUNT HW Y

Preserve Expansion Project in:
T4S, R9E, Portions of Sections 26 and 27, 
Pinal County, Arizona,
Projection: UTM NAD83, Zone 12N
Surface Management: BLM 2018
Data Source: J2 Engineering and Environmental
Image Source: ArcGIS Online, USA NAIP Natural Color 2017

Path: M:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ENV\EA\mxd\03 ExpansionDetailsEA.mxd Date: 8/23/2019 User: evinson

Legend
Existing Fence

[ [ Proposed Fence
Gate
Existing Trail to be preserved in place
Existing Trail to be revegetated naturally
Existing Trail to be revegetated mechanically
Proposed Trail
Visitor Facilities and Access Road
Project Area
Expansion Area

Surface Management
Bureau of Land Management (BLM)
Private Land (No Color)
State Trust Land
Town of Florence

±
0 350 700

Feet
0 100 200

Meters

No warranty is made by the Bureau of Land Management as to the accuracy, reliability, or completeness of these data for individual use or aggregate use with other data

TOWN OF FLORENCE
BLM - Lower Sonoran Field Office 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project 
Environmental Assessment

 PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
Figure 3



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 7d. 

MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Police 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bruce Walls, Police Chief   
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of FFY2020 Homeland Security Grant 
Program Subrecipient Agreement 200306-01 from Arizona 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2020 Homeland Security Grant Program              Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

Department of Homeland Security  
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to accept FFY 2020 Homeland Security Grant Program Subrecipient Agreement 
200306-01 from Arizona Department of Homeland Security in the amount of $42,180 for 
the Florence Public Safety Interoperable Communications Project.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Florence Police Department was awarded $42,180.00 in grant funds for the Florence 
Public Safety Interoperable Communications Project.  The grant funds will be used to 
purchase six P25 compliant dual band UHF/VHF 700/800 MHz mobile radios for the 
department.  The Town of Florence requested $84,360.00 to purchase 12 mobile radios 
and associated equipment to replace the existing radios that are being phased out.  The 
Arizona Department of Homeland Security was able to award only partial funding for the 
project due to the number of applications submitted and the amount of funding allocated 
to the program.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Town of Florence will not accept $42,180.00 in grant funds from Arizona Department 
of Homeland Security to purchase six mobile radios. 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2020 Homeland Security Grant Program              Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Town of Florence will accept $42,180.00 in grant funds from Arizona Department of 
Homeland Security to purchase six mobile radios. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no matching fund requirement for this grant. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Subrecipient Agreement 20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01 
 



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 1 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01

Between

The Arizona Department of Homeland Security

And

Florence, Town of (DUNS# 144375743)

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 41-4254 charges the Arizona Department of Homeland Security (AZDOHS) with the
responsibility of administering funds. 

THEREFORE, it is agreed that the AZDOHS shall provide funding to the Florence, Town of (Subrecipient) for
services under the terms of this Agreement (the "Agreement").

I. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT
The purpose of this Agreement is to specify the rights and responsibilities of AZDOHS in administering
the distribution of homeland security grant funds to the Subrecipient, and to specify the rights and
responsibilities of the Subrecipient as the recipient of these funds.

II. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE, TERMINATION AND AMENDMENTS
This Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2020 and shall terminate on September 30,
2021. The obligations of the Subrecipient as described herein will survive termination of this agreement.

III. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES
The Subrecipient shall provide the services for AZDOHS as set forth in writing in Subrecipient’s grant
application titled: "Florence Public Safety Interoperable Communications Equipment" and funded
at $42,180 (as may have been modified by the award letter).

IV. MANNER OF FINANCING
The AZDOHS shall under the U.S. Department of Homeland Security grant # EMW-2020-SS-00017-S01
and CFDA #97.067:

a. Provide up to $42,180 to the Subrecipient for services provided under Paragraph III.

b. Payment made by the AZDOHS to the Subrecipient shall be on a reimbursement basis only and
is conditioned upon receipt of proof of payment and applicable, accurate and complete
reimbursement documents, as deemed necessary by the AZDOHS, to be submitted by the
Subrecipient. A listing of acceptable documentation can be found at www.azdohs.gov. Payments
will be contingent upon receipt of all reporting requirements of the Subrecipient under this
Agreement.

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01

http://www.azdohs.gov


Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 2 

   
 

V. FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY 
It is understood and agreed that the total amount of the funds used under this Agreement shall    
be used only for the project as described in the application and award documentation.  Therefore, 
should the project not be completed, the Subrecipient shall reimburse said funds directly to the 
AZDOHS immediately.  If the project is completed at a lower cost than the original budget called 
for, the amount reimbursed to the Subrecipient shall be for only the amount of dollars actually 
spent by the Subrecipient in accordance with the approved application.  For any funds received 
under this Agreement for which expenditure is disallowed by an audit exemption or otherwise by 
the AZDOHS, the State, or Federal government, the Subrecipient shall reimburse said funds 
directly to the AZDOHS immediately. 
 

VI. FINANCIAL AUDIT/PROGRAMMATIC MONITORING 
The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the record-keeping requirements and other requirements 
of A.R.S. 35-214 and 35-215. 
 
a) In addition, in compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act (31 USC 7501-7507) as amended 

by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (P.L. 104-156) and 2 C.F.R.  200.501, the 
Subrecipient must have a Single Audit or program specific audit conducted in accordance 
with 2 C.F.R. 200 (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards) if the Subrecipient expends more than $750,000 from 
Federal awards in its previous fiscal year.  If the Subrecipient has expended more than 
$750,000 in Federal dollars, a copy of the Subrecipient’s single audit or program specific audit 
report for the previous fiscal year and subsequent fiscal years that fall within the period of 
performance is due annually to AZDOHS within nine (9) months of the Subrecipient’s fiscal 
year end.  

 
b) Failure to comply with any requirements imposed as a result of an audit will suspend 

reimbursement by AZDOHS to the Subrecipient until the Subrecipient is in compliance with all 
such requirements.  Additionally, the Subrecipient will not be eligible for any new awards until 
the Subrecipient is in compliance with all such requirements.                                                                                                                                                         
 

c) Subrecipients who do not expend more than $750,000 in Federal dollars in the previous fiscal 
year and subsequent fiscal years that fall within the period of performance must submit to 
AZDOHS via audits@azdohs.gov, a statement stating they do not meet the threshold and 
therefore do not have to complete a single audit or program specific audit.  

 
d) Subrecipient will be monitored periodically by AZDOHS, both programmatically and 

financially, to ensure that the project goals, objectives, performance requirements, timelines, 
milestone completion, budgets, and other related program criteria are being met. Monitoring 
will be accomplished through a combination of office-based reviews and on-site monitoring 
visits. Monitoring can involve aspects of the work involved under this Agreement including but 
not limited to the review and analysis of financial, programmatic, equipment, performance, 
and administrative issues relative to each program and will identify areas where technical 
assistance and other support may be needed.  Subrecipient shall participate in and cooperate 
with all such monitoring by AZDOHS, and shall provide access to all personnel, documents, 
and other records as may be requested from time to time by AZDOHS.  Subrecipient also 
shall comply with all requests of AZDOHS that AZDOHS deems necessary to assure the 
parties’ compliance with their obligations under this Agreement.  

 
e) The Subrecipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, state/national evaluation efforts, 
or information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any 
information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this Agreement. 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 3 

 
VII. APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS 

The Subrecipient must comply with the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) and 
Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 2 C.F.R. 200.  The NOFO for this program is hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference.  By accepting this award, the Subrecipient agrees 
that all allocation and use of funds under this grant will be in accordance with the requirements 
contained in the NOFO and all other applicable law.  
   
Davis Bacon Act 
HSGP Program subrecipients using funds for construction projects must comply with the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.). Subrecipients must obtain written approval from AZDOHS 
prior to use of any HSGP funds for construction or renovation.  Subrecipients must ensure that 
their contractors or subcontractors for construction projects pay workers no less than the 
prevailing wages for laborers and mechanics employed on projects of a character similar to the 
contract work in the civil subdivision of the state in which the work is to be performed. Additional 
information regarding compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act, including Department of Labor (DOL) 
wage determinations, is available from the following website 
https://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts/dbra.htm.  
 
Insurance Coverage 
The Subrecipient affirms the organization maintain insurance coverage as described in 2 C.F.R. 
200.310. The non-Federal (Subrecipient) entity must, at a minimum, provide the equivalent 
insurance coverage for real property and equipment acquired or improved with Federal funds as 
provided to property owned by the non-Federal (Subrecipient) entity. Federally-owned property 
need not be insured unless required by the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 
 
National Incident Management System (NIMS) 
The Subrecipient agrees to remain in compliance with National Incident Management System 
(NIMS) implementation initiatives as outlined in the applicable NOFO. 
 
Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation  
The Subrecipient shall comply with Federal, State and Local environmental and historical 
preservation (EHP) regulations, laws and Executive Orders as applicable. See FEMA publication 
FP 108-023-1, titled “Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Policy Guidance,” 
available at https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1533321728657-
592e122ade85743d1760fd4747241776/GPD_EHP_Policy_Final_Amendment_GPD_final_508.p
df.  Subrecipients proposing projects that have the potential to impact the environment, including 
but not limited to construction of communication towers, modification or renovation of existing 
buildings, structures and facilities, or new construction including replacement of facilities, must 
participate in the Federal Department of Homeland Security (DHS)/Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) EHP review process. The EHP review process involves the 
submission of a detailed project description that explains the goals and objectives of the 
proposed project along with supporting documentation so that DHS/FEMA may determine 
whether the proposed project has the potential to impact environmental resources and/or historic 
properties. In some cases, DHS/FEMA is also required to consult with other regulatory agencies 
and the public in order to complete the review process. The EHP review process must be 
completed before funds are released to carry out the proposed project. If ground disturbing 
activities occur during project implementation, the Subrecipient must ensure monitoring of ground 
disturbance and if any archeological resources are discovered, the Subrecipient shall immediately 
cease construction in that area and notify FEMA, AZDOHS and the appropriate State Historic 
Preservation Office.  DHS/FEMA will not fund projects that are initiated without the required EHP 
review. In addition, the following provisions must be adhered to: 
 
Consultants/Trainers/Training Providers 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 4 

Invoices for consultants/trainers/training providers must include at a minimum:  a description of 
services; dates of services; number of hours for services performed; rate charged for services; 
and, the total cost of services performed.  Consultant/trainer/training provider costs must be 
within the prevailing rates; must be obtained under consistent treatment with the procurement 
policies of the Subrecipient and 2 C.F.R. 200; and shall not exceed the maximum of $450 per day 
per consultant/trainer/training provider unless prior written approval is granted by the AZDOHS. 
This includes internal personnel hired on backfill/overtime to deliver training. In addition to the per 
day $450 maximum amount, the consultant/trainer/training provider may be reimbursed 
reasonable travel, lodging, meal and incidental expenses not to exceed the State rate.  Itemized 
receipts are required for lodging and travel reimbursements.  The Subrecipient will not be 
reimbursed costs other than travel, lodging, meals and incidentals on travel days for 
consultants/trainers/training providers.  See Travel Costs below.   
 
Contractors/Subcontractors 
The Subrecipient may enter into written subcontract(s) for performance of certain of its functions 
under the Agreement in accordance with terms established in 2 C.F.R. 200 and the applicable 
NOFO.  The Subrecipient agrees and understands that no subcontract that the Subrecipient 
enters into with respect to performance under this Agreement shall in any way relieve the 
Subrecipient of any responsibilities for performance of its duties.  The Subrecipient shall give the 
AZDOHS immediate notice in writing by certified mail of any action or suit filed and prompt notice 
of any claim made against the Subrecipient by any subcontractor or vendor which may result in 
litigation related in any way to this Agreement. 
 
Travel Costs 
All grant funds expended for travel, lodging, meals and incidentals are subject to the standards of 
the Subrecipient’s policies and procedures, as well as the State of Arizona Accounting Manual 
(SAAM).  These policies must be applied uniformly to both federally financed and other activities 
of the Subrecipient.  AZDOHS will reimburse at the most restrictive allowability and rate.  At no 
time will the Subrecipient’s reimbursement(s) exceed the State rate established by the Arizona 
Department of Administration, General Accounting Office Travel Policies: 
https://gao.az.gov/travel. 
 
Procurement 
The Subrecipient shall comply with its own procurement rules/policies and must also comply with 
Federal procurement rules/policies and all Arizona state procurement code provisions and rules.  
The Federal intent is that all Homeland Security Funds are awarded competitively.  The 
Subrecipient shall not enter into a Noncompetitive (Sole or Single Source) Procurement 
Agreement, unless prior written approval is granted by the AZDOHS via the Noncompetitive 
Procurement Request Form.  The Noncompetitive Procurement Request Form and instructions 
are located on the AZDOHS website: https://azdohs.gov/grant-program-forms. 
  
Training and Exercise 
The Subrecipient agrees that any grant funds used for training and exercise must be in 
compliance with the applicable NOFO. All training must be included and approved in your 
application and/or approved through the DEMA/AZDOHS training request process prior to 
execution of training contract(s). All exercises must utilize and comply with the FEMA Homeland 
Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP) guidance for exercise design, development, 
conduct, evaluation and reporting. The Subrecipient agrees to:  
 
 
a) Submit an exercise summary and attendance/sign-in roster to AZDOHS with all related 

reimbursement requests. 
 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 5 

b) Email the After Action Report/Improvement Plan (AAR/IP) to the local County Emergency 
Manager, the AZDOHS Strategic Planner, and the Arizona Department of Military Affairs 
(DEMA) Exercise Branch within 90 days of completion of an exercise or as prescribed by the 
most current HSEEP guidance.    

 
Communications Equipment  
All Land Mobile Radio equipment purchased with Homeland Security funds is required to comply 
with the following: 
a) P25 (Project 25) standards; 
b) SAFECOM Guidance (see https://www.dhs.gov/safecom);  
c) Land Mobile Radio Minimum Equipment Standards as approved by the Statewide 

Interoperability Executive Committee (SIEC); and 
d) Arizona's State Interoperable Priority Programming Guide also as approved by the 

SIEC 
 
Nonsupplanting Agreement 
The Subrecipient shall not use funds received under this Agreement to supplant Federal, State, 
Tribal or Local funds or other resources that would otherwise have been made available for this 
program/project. The Subrecipient may be required to demonstrate and document that a 
reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt of expected 
receipt of Federal funds. Further, if a position created by a grant is filled from within, the vacancy 
created by this action must be filled within thirty (30) days. If the vacancy is not filled within thirty 
(30) days, the Subrecipient must stop charging the grant for the new position. Upon filling the 
vacancy, the Subrecipient may resume charging for the grant position.   

 
E-Verify  
Compliance requirements for A.R.S. 41-4401—immigration laws and E-Verify requirement.  

a) The Subrecipient warrants its compliance with all State and Federal immigration laws and 
regulations relating to its employees and to employees of any contractor or subcontractor 
retained through Subrecipient to provide goods or services related to this Agreement, 
including but not limited to A.R.S. 23-214, Subsection A (that subsection reads: “After 
December 31, 2007, every employer, after hiring an employee, shall verify the employment 
eligibility of the employee through the E-Verify program”). 

b) A breach of a warranty by Subrecipient regarding compliance with immigration laws and 
regulations shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and the Subrecipient may 
be subject to penalties to be determined at AZDOHS’s discretion, up to and including 
termination of this Agreement.   

c) The AZDOHS retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Subrecipient employee who 
works on the Agreement, and to those of any employee of any contractor or subcontractor 
retained through Subrecipient to provide goods or services related to this Agreement, to 
ensure that the Subrecipient is complying with the warranty under paragraph (a) above.   

 

 

 

 
 
Property Control 
Effective control and accountability must be maintained by Subrecipient for all property/equipment 
purchased under this Agreement.  The Subrecipient must adequately safeguard all such 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 6 

property/equipment and must assure that it is used for authorized purposes as described in the 
NOFO, the grant application as approved by AZDOHS, and 2 C.F.R. 200. The Subrecipient shall 
exercise caution in the use, maintenance, protection and preservation of such property.  
 
a) Property/equipment shall be used by the Subrecipient in the program or project for which it 

was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the program or project continues to be 
supported by federal grant funds. Subrecipient is required to maintain and utilize equipment 
as outlined in 2 C.F.R. 200.313 - Equipment. Any loss, damage, or theft shall be investigated 
by Subrecipient and reported by Subrecipient to the AZDOHS. Any equipment lost, damaged 
or stolen shall be replaced by the Subrecipient at the Subrecipient’s expense and an updated 
Property Control Form shall be submitted to AZDOHS by Subrecipient.  

 
b) Nonexpendable Property/Equipment and Capital Assets: 
 

a. Nonexpendable Property/Equipment is property which has a continuing use, is not 
consumed in use, is of a durable nature with an expected service life of one or more 
years, has an acquisition cost of $5,000 (Five Thousand Dollars) or more, and does not 
become a fixture or lose its identity as a component of other equipment or systems. 

 
b. A Capital Asset is any personal or real property, or fixture that has an acquisition cost of 

$5,000 (Five Thousand Dollars) or more per unit and a useful life of more than one year. 
 

c) A Property Control Form (if applicable) shall be maintained for the entire scope of the 
program or project for which property was acquired through the end of its useful life and/or 
disposition. All Nonexpendable Property and Capital Assets must be included on the Property 
Control Form. The Subrecipient shall provide AZDOHS a copy of the Property Control Form 
with the final quarterly programmatic report.  The Property Control Form can be located at 
https://azdohs.gov/grant-program-forms.  The Subrecipient agrees to be subject to equipment 
monitoring and auditing by state or federal authorized representatives to verify information. 

 
d) A physical inventory of Nonexpendable Property/Equipment and Capital Assets must be 

taken and the results reconciled with the Property Control Form at least once every two years. 
 

a. A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, 
damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage, or theft shall be investigated and 
reported by Subrecipient to AZDOHS immediately. 

 
b. Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the property in good 

condition. 
 

e) When Nonexpendable Property/Equipment and/or Capital Assets are no longer in operational 
use by the Subrecipient, an updated Property Control Form must be submitted by 
Subrecipient to AZDOHS immediately.  The disposition of equipment shall be in compliance 
with the AZDOHS Disposition Guidance and 2 C.F.R. 200. If the Subrecipient is requesting 
disposition of Capital Assets for reasons other than theft, destruction, or loss, the Subrecipient 
must submit an Equipment Disposition Request Form to AZDOHS and receive approval prior 
to the disposition.  The Equipment Disposition Guidance and Request Form can be found at 
https://azdohs.gov/grant-program-forms. 
 
 
 

f) Equipment Record Retention 
Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.333(c), records for real property and equipment acquired with 
Federal funds must be retained for three (3) years after final disposition.  

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 7 

 
Allowable Costs 
The allowability of costs incurred under this Agreement shall be determined in accordance with 
the general principles of allowability and standards for selected cost items as set forth in the 
applicable Code of Federal Regulations, authorized equipment lists, and guidance documents 
referenced above. 
 
a) The Subrecipient agrees that use of grant funds for any indirect costs that may be incurred 

must be in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200 and the applicable NOFO. Indirect costs must be 
applied for and approved in writing by the AZDOHS prior to expenditure and reimbursement.  
 

b) The Subrecipeint agrees that grant funds are not to be expended for any Management and 
Administrative (M&A) costs that may be incurred by the Subrecipient for administering these 
funds unless explicitly applied for and approved in writing by the AZDOHS and shall be in 
compliance with the applicable NOFO.  

 
VIII. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

The Subrecipient is to the non-procurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing 
Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, which are at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 as adopted by DHS at 2 
C.F.R. Part 3000. These regulations restrict federal financial assistance awards, subawards, and 
contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or 
ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs or activities. 
  

IX. FUNDS MANAGEMENT 
The Subrecipient must maintain funds received under this Agreement in separate ledger 
accounts and cannot mix these funds with funds from other sources.  The Subrecipient must 
manage funds according to applicable Federal regulations for administrative requirements, costs 
principles, and audits. 
 
The Subrecipient must maintain adequate business systems to comply with Federal 
requirements.  The business systems that must be maintained are: 

• Financial Management 
• Procurement 
• Personnel 
• Property 
• Travel 

 
A system is adequate if it is 1) written; 2) consistently followed – it applies in all similar 
circumstances; and 3) consistently applied – it applies to all sources of funds. 
 

X. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Regular reports by the Subrecipient shall include: 
 
a) Programmatic Reports 

The Subrecipient shall provide quarterly programmatic reports to the AZDOHS within fifteen 
(15) calendar days of the last day of the quarter in which services are provided.  The 
Subrecipient shall use the form provided by the AZDOHS to submit quarterly programmatic 
reports.  The report shall contain such information as deemed necessary by the AZDOHS.  
The Subrecipient shall use the Quarterly Programmatic Report form, which is posted at 
https://azdohs.gov/grant-program-forms. Quarterly programmatic reports shall be submitted to 
the AZDOHS until the entire project is completed.  If the project has been fully completed and 
implemented, and there will be no further updates, then the quarterly programmatic report for 
the quarter in which the project was completed will be sufficient as the final report.  The report 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 8 

should be marked as final and should be inclusive of all necessary and pertinent information 
regarding the project as deemed necessary by the AZDOHS.  
 

b) Subrecipients must provide substantial/detailed information as to the status of completion of 
the milestones included in the application as approved by AZDOHS. Failure to adequately 
provide complete information will result in the Quarterly Report being rejected and 
resubmission will be required.   
 

c) Quarterly Programmatic Reports are due: 
January 15 (for the period from October 1– December 31) 
April 15 (for the period from January 1 – March 31) 
July 15 (for the period from April 1 – June 30) 
October 15 (for the period from July 1 – September 30) 

 
d) Final Quarterly Report: 

The final quarterly report is due no more than fifteen (15) calendar days after the end of the 
performance period.  Subrecipient may submit a final quarterly report prior to the end of the 
performance period if the scope of the project has been fully completed and implemented. The 
Property Control Form is due with the final quarterly report (if applicable). 

 
e) Property Control Form – if applicable: 

The Subrecipient shall provide the AZDOHS a copy of the Property Control Form with the 
final quarterly report.   

 
a. In case of equipment disposition: 

The Property Control Form shall be updated and a copy provided to AZDOHS no  
more than forty-five (45) calendar days after equipment disposition, if applicable.  The 
Subrecipient’s use and disposition of equipment must be in compliance with the 
AZDOHS Disposition Guidance and 2 C.F.R. 200.313.   

 
f) Financial Reimbursements  

The Subrecipient shall provide AZDOHS with requests for reimbursement as frequently 
as monthly but not less than quarterly. Reimbursement requests are only required when 
expenses have been incurred.  Reimbursement requests shall be submitted with the 
Reimbursement Form provided by the AZDOHS staff.  The Subrecipient shall submit a final 
reimbursement request for expenses received and invoiced prior to the end of the period of 
performance. The final reimbursement must be received by AZDOHS no more than forty-five 
(45) calendar days after the end of the period of performance.  Requests for reimbursement 
received by AZDOHS later than forty-five (45) calendar days after the end of the period of 
performance will not be paid.  The final reimbursement request as submitted shall be marked 
as final.  
 
Subrecipients will only be reimbursed for expenses that have been obligated, expended and 
received within the authorized Period of Performance as identified in Section II of this 
Agreement. Subrecipients are not authorized to obligate or expend funds prior to the start 
date of the Period of Performance.  Any expenses obligated or expended prior to the Period 
of Performance start date will be deemed unallowable and will not be reimbursed. Any 
expenses/services that occur beyond the Period of Performance (i.e. cell phone service) will 
be deemed unallowable and will not be reimbursed.  
 

The AZDOHS requires that all requests for reimbursement are submitted via United States 
Postal Service, FedEx, UPS, etc. or in person.  Reimbursement requests submitted via fax or 
by any electronic means will not be accepted.  
 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 9 

The AZDOHS reserves the right to request and/or require any supporting documentation 
and/or information it feels necessary in order to process reimbursements.  Subrecipient shall 
promptly provide AZDOHS with all such documents and/or information.  
 

All reports shall be submitted to the contact person as described in Paragraph XXXVII, NOTICES, 
of this Agreement. 
  

XI. ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION 
The Subrecipient may not assign any rights hereunder without the express, prior written 
agreement of both parties. 
 

XII. AMENDMENTS 
Any change in this Agreement including but not limited to the Description of Services and budget 
described herein, whether by modification or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal 
Agreement amendment signed and approved by and between the duly authorized 
representatives of the Subrecipient and the AZDOHS.  In the event of any new legislation, laws, 
ordinances, or rules affecting this Agreement, the parties agree that the terms of this Agreement 
shall automatically incorporate the terms of such new legislation, laws, ordinances, or rules.  
 
Any such amendment shall specify:  1) an effective date; 2) any increases or decreases in the 
amount of the Subrecipient’s compensation, if applicable; 3) be titled as an “Amendment,” and 4) 
be signed by the parties identified in the preceding paragraph. The Subrecipient expressly and 
explicitly understands and agrees that no other method of communication, including any other 
document, correspondence, act, or oral communication by or from any person, shall be used or 
construed as an amendment or modification or supplementation to this Agreement. 
 

XIII. US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY AGREEMENT ARTICLES  
Article A - Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award 
When original or replacement equipment acquired in conjunction with this Agreement by the 
Subrecipient is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently 
or previously supported by DHS/FEMA, the Subrecipient must request instructions from 
DHS/FEMA via AZDOHS by submitting an Equipment Disposition Request Form in order to make 
proper disposition of the equipment pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.313. 
 
Article B – Acceptance of Post Award Changes 
In the event FEMA determines that changes are necessary to this Agreement after it has been 
entered into, including changes to period of performance or terms and conditions, the 
Subrecipient will be notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has been made, any 
subsequent request for funds by Subrecipient will constitute Subrecipient’s acceptance of the 
changes to this Agreement and the incorporation of such changes into this Agreement.  
 
Article C - Procurement of Recovered Materials 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with section 6002 of the 
Solid Waste Disposal Act, Pub. L. No. 89-272 (1965) (codified as amended by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 6962) and that the requirements of Section 6002 
include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials 
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition. 
 
Article D - Whistleblower Protection Act 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the statutory 
requirements for whistleblower protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C. 2409, 41 U.S.C. 4712, and 
10 U.S.C. 2324, 41 U.S.C. section 4304 and 4310. 
 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 10 

Article E - Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags 
Subrecipient hereby acknowledges that it must obtain DHS’s approval prior to using the DHS 
seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including 
use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of 
Coast Guard officials. 
 
Article F - USA Patriot Act of 2001 
Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of the 
Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and 
Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act, P.L. 107-56), which amends 18 U.S.C. section 175–
175c.  
 
Article G – Universal Identifier and System of Award Management (SAM) 
Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that is must comply with the requirements set 
forth in the government-wide financial assistance award term regarding the System for Award 
Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at 2 C.F.R. Part 25, Appendix A. 
 
Article H - Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance 
If the total value of your currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement 
contracts from all Federal assistance offices exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of time during 
the period of performance of this Federal award, you must comply with the requirements set forth 
in the government-wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and, Performance 
Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Appendix XII, the full text of which is incorporated here by 
reference in the terms and conditions of your award. 
 
Article I - Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P. L. No. 93-112 (1973) (codified as amended at 29 
U.S.C. 794), which provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United 
States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. These requirements pertain to the provision of benefits or services as well as 
to employment. 
 
Article J - Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 
Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of the 
government-wide award term which implements Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims 
Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104). The award term is located at 2 
C.F.R. Part 175.15, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference.  
 
Article K - Terrorist Financing  
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with U.S. Executive Order 
13224 and all U.S. laws that prohibit transactions with, and the provisions of resources and 
support to, individuals and organizations associated with terrorism.  It is the legal responsibility of 
the Subrecipient to ensure compliance with all such laws and U.S. Executive Order 13224. 
 
Article L - SAFECOM 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that recipients who receive awards made 
under programs that provide emergency communication equipment and its related activities must 
comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication Grants, including 
provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable communications. 
 
Article M - Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 11 

All subrecipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the government-wide 
Award Term on Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation located at 2 C.F.R. Part 170, 
Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of 
your award. 
 
Article N – Department and Suspension 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is subject to the non-procurement 
debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, and 2 
C.F.R. Part 180. These regulations restrict Federal financial assistance awards, subawards, and 
contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or 
ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs or activities. 
 
Article O - Copyright 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must affix the applicable copyright 
notices of 17 U.S.C. 401 or 402 and an acknowledgement of Government sponsorship (including 
award number) to any work first produced under Federal financial assistance awards.  
 
Article P - Civil Rights Act of 1964 - Title VI 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 
44 C.F.R. Part 7, which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 
Article Q - Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII) 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that if it collects PII, it is required to have a 
publically-available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of PII 
it collects. DHS defines personally identifiable information (PII) as any information that permits the 
identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked 
or linkable to that individual. Subrecipients may also find the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: 
Privacy Guidance and Privacy template as useful resources respectively.  
 
Article R - Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it shall comply with all State and Federal 
equal opportunity and non-discrimination requirements and conditions of employment, including 
but not limited to Arizona Executive Order 2009-9 and the requirements of Titles I, II, and III of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, P.L. No. 101-336 (1990) (codified as amended at 42 US.C. 
12101-12213), which prohibit subrecipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the 
operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 
accommodation, and certain testing entities. 
 
Article S - Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of 
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age in any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 
Article T - Activities Conducted Abroad 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must ensure that project activities 
carried on outside the United States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government 
authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained. 
 
Article U - Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 12 

The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must acknowledge its use of federal 
funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and 
other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 
 
Article V - DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances 
Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees—and agrees to require any contractors, 
successors, transferees, and assignees acknowledge and agree—to comply with applicable 
provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and 
staff. 
 
1. Subrecipient hereby agrees to cooperate with any compliance review or complaint 

investigation conducted by DHS and/or AZDOHS. 
 

2. Subrecipient hereby agrees to give DHS access and AZDOHS to and the right to examine 
and copy records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the 
grant and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may 
be necessary, as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program 
guidance. 
 

3. Subrecipient hereby agrees to submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the 
appropriate DHS and AZDOHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to 
support the reports. 
 

4. Subrecipient hereby agrees to comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and 
evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance. 

 
Article W - Assurances, Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must complete OMB Standard Form 
424B Assurances – Non-Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances – 
Construction Programs as applicable.  
 
DHS financial assistance recipients are required to follow the applicable provisions of the Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, and adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002. 
 
Article X - Patents and Intellectual Property Rights 
Unless otherwise provided by law, the Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is 
subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, P.L. 96-517, codified in 35 U.S.C. 200 et seq., and that it is subject 
to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and disposition of rights to 
inventions and patents resulting from financial assistance awards that are in 37 C.F.R. Part 401 
and the standard patent rights clause in 37 C.F.R. 401.14. 
 
Article Y – Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations 
It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations in social service 
programs administered or supported by DHS or its component agencies, enabling those 
organizations to participate in providing important social services to beneficiaries. All 
subrecipients must comply with the equal treatment policies and requirements contained in 6 
C.F.R. Part 19 and other applicable statutes, regulations, and guidance governing the 
participations of faith-based organizations in individual DHS programs.  
 
 
Article Z – National Environmental Policy Act 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 13 

All subrecipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) 42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq., and the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) Regulations (40 
C.F.R. Parts 1500-1508) for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA, which requires 
Subrecipients to use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with other 
essential considerations of national policy, to create and maintain conditions under which people 
and nature can exist in productive harmony and fulfill the social, economic, and other needs of 
present and future generations of Americans.  
 
Article AA - Lobbying Prohibitions 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with 31 U.S.C. 1352, and 
acknowledges and agrees that none of the funds provided under this Agreement may be used to 
pay any person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency 
(whether State or Federal), a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any Federal action related to a Federal 
award or contract, including any extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification. 
 
Article AB - Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI) 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) prohibition against discrimination on the basis 
of national origin, which requires that recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable 
steps to provide meaningful access to persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) to their 
programs and services. For additional assistance and information regarding language access 
obligations, please refer to the DHS Recipient Guidance https://www.dhs.gov/guidance-
published-help-department-supported-organizations-provide-meaningful-access-people-limited 
and additional resources on http://www.lep.gov. 
 
Article AC - Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990 
In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990 and the Federal Fire 
Prevention and Control Act of 1974, 15 U.S.C. section 2225(a), the Subrecipient hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that it must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention, or training 
space funded in whole or in part with Federal funds complies with all applicable fire prevention 
and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, 15 U.S.C. section 
2225. 
 
Article AD - Fly America Act of 1974 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with Preference for U.S. 
Flag Air Carriers (air carriers holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. 41102) for international air 
transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance 
with the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974, 49 U.S.C. 40118, 
and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the United States in the 
March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942. 
 
Article AE - Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving 
All subrecipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while 
driving as described in U.S. Executive Order 13513, including conducting initiatives described in 
Section 3(a) of the Order when on official Government business or when performing any work for 
or on behalf of the federal government. 
 
 
Article AF - Federal Debt Status 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is required to be non-delinquent in its 
repayment of any Federal debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other 
taxes, audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. See OMB Circular A-129.  
Article AG - False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 14 

The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of 
The False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. 3729-3733) which prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent 
claims for payment to the Federal government. See also 31 U.S.C. 3801-3812 which details the 
administrative remedies for false claims and statements made. 
 
Article AH - Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of 
The Energy Policy and Conservation Act, Pub. L. No. 94-163 (1975) (codified as amended at 42 
U.S.C. 6201 et. seq.) which contain policies relating to energy efficiency that are defined in the 
state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act. 
 
Article AI - Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) – Title IX 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the requirements of 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.), which provide that no 
person in the United States will, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied 
the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity 
receiving Federal financial assistance. These regulations are codified at 6 CFR Part 17 and 44 
CFR Part 19. 
 
Article AJ - Duplication of Benefits 
Any cost allocable to a particular Federal award, provided for in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E may 
not be charged to other Federal awards to overcome fund deficiencies, to avoid restrictions 
imposed by Federal statutes, regulations, or terms and conditions of the Federal awards, or for 
other reasons. However, this prohibition would not preclude a subrecipient from shifting costs that 
are allowable under two or more Federal awards in accordance with existing Federal statutes, 
regulations, or the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 
 
Article AK - Drug-Free Workplace Regulations 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with the drug-free 
workplace requirements in Subpart B (or Subpart C, if the Subrecipient is an individual) of 2 
C.F.R. part 3001, which adopts the Government-wide implementation (2 C.F.R. part 182) of sec. 
5152-5158 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 
U.S.C. 8101-8106). 
  
Article AL - Civil Rights Act of 1968 
The Subrecipient hereby acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with Title VIII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1968, which prohibits recipients from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, 
and advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis 
of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.), 
as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. 
The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that new multifamily housing 
with four or more dwelling units—i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment 
units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators)—
be designed and constructed with certain accessible features (see 24 C.F.R. 100.201). 
 
 
Article AM - Prohibitions on Expending FEMA Award Funds for Covered 
Telecommunications Equipment or Services 

Per 889(b)(1) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019 (FY 
2019 NDAA), Pub. L. No. 115-232 (2018):   

1. AZDOHS Subrecipients may not use any FEMA funds under open or new awards to:  

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 15 

a. Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses “covered 
telecommunications equipment or services” (as defined in ¶2 of this Article AM)  as a 
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any 
system;  

b. Enter into, extend, or renew a contract to procure or obtain any equipment, system, or 
service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial 
or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system; or  

c. Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use covered 
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of 
any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.   
 

2. For purposes of this Article AM “covered telecommunications equipment or services” 
means:  
a. Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE 

Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);  
b. Video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera 

Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or 
Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);  

c. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using 
such equipment; or 

d. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or 
provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of 
National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably 
believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the 
People’s Republic of China. 
 

3. FEMA grant funding may be permitted to procure replacement equipment and services 
impacted by this Article AM. Subrecipients should refer to applicable program guidance or 
contact the AZDOHS to determine if replacement equipment or services are eligible under 
the awarded grant program. 

 
XIV. OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED 

Due to security and identity protection concerns, all services under this Agreement shall be 
performed within the borders of the United States.  All storage and processing of information shall 
be performed within the borders of the United States.  This provision applies to work performed 
by the Subrecipient’s contractors and subcontractors at all tiers. 
 

XV. AGREEMENT RENEWAL 
This Agreement shall not bind nor purport to bind the AZDOHS for any contractual commitment in 
excess of the original Agreement period, which may not be changed except by a writing signed by 
all parties hereto in conformity with Paragraph XII, AMENDMENTS. 
 

XVI. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE 
If the AZDOHS in good faith has reason to believe that the Subrecipient does not intend to, or is 
unable to perform or continue performing under this Agreement, the AZDOHS may demand in 
writing that the Subrecipient give a written assurance of intent and ability to perform.  If the 
Subrecipient fails to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the demand, 
the AZDOHS at its option may terminate this Agreement. 
 

XVII. CANCELLATION FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
The AZDOHS may, by written notice to the Subrecipient, immediately cancel this Agreement 
without penalty or further obligation pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511 if any person significantly involved 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 16 

in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or creating the Agreement on behalf of the State or its 
subdivisions (unit of Local Government) is an employee or agent of any other party in any 
capacity or a consultant to any other party to the Agreement with respect to the subject matter of 
the Agreement.  Such cancellation shall be effective when the parties to the Agreement receive 
written notice from the AZDOHS, unless the notice specifies a later time. 
 

XVIII. THIRD PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS 
The Subrecipient hereby assigns to the State of Arizona any claim for overcharges resulting from 
antitrust violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services supplied by 
third parties to Subrecipient toward fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 

XIX. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
Every payment obligation of the AZDOHS under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 
availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligations under A.R.S. 
35-154.  If the funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, the 
AZDOHS may terminate this Agreement at the end of the period for which funds are available.  
No liability shall accrue to the AZDOHS in the event this provision is exercised, and the AZDOHS 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph, including purchases and/or contracts entered into by the 
Subrecipient in the execution of this Agreement. 
 

XX. FORCE MAJEURE 
If either party hereto is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required in this 
Agreement by reason of acts of God, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, civil disorder, or other 
causes without fault and beyond the control of the party obligated, performance of such act will be 
excused for the period of the delay. 
 

XXI. PARTIAL INVALIDITY 
 Any term or provision of this Agreement that is hereafter declared contrary to any current 
 or future law, order, regulation, or rule, or which is otherwise invalid, shall be deemed stricken 
 from this Agreement without impairing the validity of the remainder of this Agreement.  
 

XXII. ARBITRATION 
In the event of any dispute arising under this Agreement, written notice of the dispute must be 
provided to the other party within thirty (30) calendar days of the events giving the rise to the 
dispute. Any claim made by or against the State or any of its political subdivisions (including but 
not limited to AZDOHS) relating to this Agreement shall be resolved through the administrative 
claims process.  In the event that the parties would otherwise be in court and/or if A.R.S. 12-1518 
applies, the parties shall proceed in arbitration through the American Arbitration Association 
(“AAA”), with the arbitrator to be selected pursuant to AAA rules and the arbitration to be 
conducted according to the applicable AAA rules, and with the costs of arbitration (including but 
not limited to the arbitrator’s fees and costs) to be divided 50/50 between the parties, subject to 
reallocation between the parties by the arbitrator.  In the event that the parties become involved in 
litigation with each other relating to this Agreement for any reason in any other forum, both parties 
agree to have any claim(s) resolved in arbitration on the terms set forth in this part XXII.  Any 
arbitration award may be enforced through the Maricopa County Superior Court or the U.S. 
District Court located in Phoenix, Arizona.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 17 

XXIII. GOVERNING LAW AND CONTRACT INTERPRETATION 
a) This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Arizona. 
 
b) This Agreement is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of their 

agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall 
supplement or explain any terms in this document. 

 
c) Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Agreement 

shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or 
acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and 
fails to object. 

 
XXIV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto pertaining to the 
subject matter hereof and may not be changed or added to except by a writing signed by all 
parties hereto in conformity with Paragraph XII, AMENDMENTS.  All prior and contemporaneous 
agreements, representations, and understandings of the parties, oral, written, pertaining to the 
subject matter hereof, are hereby superseded or merged herein. 

 
XXV. LICENSING 

The Subrecipient, unless otherwise exempted by law, shall obtain and maintain all licenses, 
permits, and authority necessary to perform those acts it is obligated to perform under this 
Agreement. 
 

XXVI. SECTARIAN REQUESTS 
Funds disbursed pursuant to this Agreement may not be expended for any sectarian purpose or 
activity, including sectarian worship or instruction in violation of the United States or Arizona 
Constitutions. 

 
XXVII. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION OF AGREEMENT 

The Subrecipient shall not advertise or publish information for commercial benefit concerning this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the AZDOHS. 

 
XXVIII. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION, PRINTED AND PUBLISHED MATERIAL 

The Subrecipient acknowledges that the DHS and the AZDOHS reserve a royalty-free, non-
exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to 
use, for Federal government purposes: (a) the copyright in any work developed under an award 
or sub-award; and (2) any rights of copyright to which a subrecipient purchases ownership with 
Federal support. The Subrecipient shall consult with the AZDOHS regarding the allocation of any 
patent rights that arise from, or are purchased with, this funding 
 

XXIX. CLOSED-CAPTIONING OF PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Any television public service announcement that is produced or funded in whole or in part by the 
Subrecipient shall include closed captioning of the verbal content of such announcement. 
 

XXX. INDEMNIFICATION 
Each party (as "Indemnitor") agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party (as 
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including 
reasonable attorney's fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") arising out of bodily 
injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such Claims 
which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are caused by the act, omission, 
negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, 
or volunteers.  The State of Arizona (AZDOHS) is self-insured per A.R.S. 41-621. 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 18 

 
In addition, should Subrecipient utilize a contractor(s) and subcontractor(s), the indemnification 
clause between Subrecipient and contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) shall include the following: 
 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the (insert name of other 
governmental entity) and the State of Arizona, and any jurisdiction or agency issuing any 
permits for any work arising out of this Agreement, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred 
to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, 
losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or 
personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property 
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the contractor or any of the directors, officers, agents, or employees or 
subcontractors of such contractor.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising 
out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of 
such contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, 
regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by such contractor from and against any and 
all claims. It is agreed that such contractor will be responsible for primary loss 
investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  
Additionally on all applicable insurance policies, contractor and its subcontractors shall 
name the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 
universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees as an additional insured and also 
include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State. 
 

XXXI. TERMINATION 
a) All parties reserve the right to terminate the Agreement in whole or in part due to the failure of 

the Subrecipient or AZDOHS to comply with any term or condition of the Agreement, to 
acquire and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses, and permits or to make 
satisfactory progress in performing the Agreement.  A party invoking the right to terminate 
shall provide written thirty (30) day advance notice of the termination and the reasons for it to 
the other party. 
 

b) If the Subrecipient chooses to terminate the Agreement before the grant deliverables have 
been met, then the AZDOHS reserves the right to collect all reimbursements distributed to the 
Subrecipient. 

 
c) The AZDOHS may, upon termination of this Agreement, procure, on terms and in the manner 

that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those that otherwise would have 
been provided by Subrecipient under this Agreement.  The Subrecipient shall be liable to the 
AZDOHS for any excess costs incurred by the AZDOHS in procuring materials or services in 
substitution for those due from the Subrecipient. 
 

XXXII. CONTINUATION OF PERFORMANCE THROUGH TERMINATION 
The Subrecipient shall continue to perform, in accordance with the requirements of the 
Agreement, up to the date of termination, as directed in the termination notice. 
 
 

XXXIII. PARAGRAPH HEADINGS 
The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not 
define, limit, enlarge, or otherwise affect the scope, construction, or interpretation of this 
Agreement or any of its provisions. 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 19 

 
XXXIV. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, copies, or duplicate originals.  
Each such counterpart, copy, or duplicate original shall be deemed an original, and collectively 
they shall constitute one Agreement. 

 
XXXV. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT 

Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the Subrecipient represents and warrants 
that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Subrecipient. 
 

XXXVI. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
a) The Subrecipient must comply with the most recent version of the Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit requirements. 
 
b) The Subrecipient is prohibited from transferring funds between programs (e.g., State 

Homeland Security Program, Urban Area Security Initiative, Operation Stonegarden). 
 
c) The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the U.S. Department of Homeland Security regulation 

6 C.F.R Part 19, which prohibits discrimination based on religion in social service programs 
 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01



Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award.   Version 9/1/2020 Page 20 

XXXVII. NOTICES
Any and all notices, requests, demands, or communications by either party to this Agreement,
pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing, be delivered in person, or
shall be sent to the respective parties at the following addresses:

Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
1700 West Washington Street, Suite 210 
Phoenix, AZ  85007 

The Subrecipient shall address all programmatic and reimbursement notices relative to this 
Agreement to the appropriate AZDOHS staff; contact information at www.azdohs.gov.  

The AZDOHS shall address all notices relative to this Agreement to: 

Enter Title, First & Last Name Above 

Enter Agency Name Above 

Enter Street Address Above 

Enter City, State, ZIP Above 

XXXVIII. IN WITNESS WHEREOF

The parties hereto agree to execute this Agreement.

FOR AND BEHALF OF THE FOR AND BEHALF OF THE 

Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
Enter Agency Name Above 

Authorized Signature Above Gilbert M. Orrantia 
Director 

Print Name & Title Above 

Enter Date Above Date 

(Complete and mail two original documents to the Arizona Department of Homeland Security.) 

20-AZDOHS-HSGP-200306-01

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Town Manager, Brent Billingsley

 Town of Florence

 P. O. Box 2670, 775 N. Main Street

 Florence, AZ 85132

 Town of Florence

 Tara Walter, Mayor

http://www.tcpdf.org


 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7e.  

MEETING DATE:  October 5, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Benjamin Bitter, Intergovernmental and  
                                      Communications Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Returning Stronger Grant Awards 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Returning Stronger Grant Awards  Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council approve the eight Returning Stronger Grant 
applications received thus far, in the amount of $39.800.51.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 8, 2020, the Town Council authorized the creation of the Florence 
Returning Stronger Grant Program.  The Returning Stronger grants were meant to assist 
local small businesses, non-profits, and food banks in their recovery from the economic 
downturn by reimbursing them for expenses that assisted in the protection of public health 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
The application period opened on September 9, 2020.  Grant applications will be 
accepted through October 31, 2020.  After applications are received, they are reviewed 
by an Audit Panel consisting of Town Staff.  The Audit Panel verifies completeness of the 
application and supporting documentation and communicates with the applicants about 
any deficiencies.  The review process is resource-intensive but ensures that the Town will 
have adequate documentation to justify its expenses to its auditors. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the first eight grant awards, for a total of $39,800.51.  
These eight businesses have provided the confidential and proprietary information 
requested within the documentation to justify the grant awards.  Should members of the 



Subject:  Returning Stronger Grant Awards  Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

Town Council wish to review some of these materials, they should contact Benjamin 
Bitter. 
 
In order of application submittal, the recommended grant award recipients include: 
 

1. Pinal County Historical Society – $1,189.78 
2. Casa de Baca Studios – $2,120.48 
3. Windmill Winery – $10,000.00 
4. Florence Paralegal Services, LLC. – $1,800.00 
5. Kari Bradley & Associates, LLC. – $7,518.95 
6. Rinnutrition - $3,877.67 
7. Main Street Family Practice – $10,000.00 
8. The Chop Shop – $3,293.63  

 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Grant awards would not be distributed to the applicants. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The eight applicants mentioned in the discussion would receive grant awards in the 
amounts indicated. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town will spend $39,800.51 out of its general fund, to pay for the grant awards. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



Source Amount
Warrant Register-Checks and Credit Card Payments 460,986.00$            

Electronic Payments
Bank and Merchant Fees 5,497.99$                
Payroll - Net of Deductions 449,121.72$            
Payroll Related Payments:
Liens, Levys, Garnishments, Flexible Spending, AFLAC, 
Deposits to PCFCU (Employee Savings) 32,400.58$              

Town of Florence
Summary of Warrants Paid

for August 2020
Retirement Contributions, Arizona State Retirement, Public 
Safety Retirement, Securian, Voluntary 401K Plan 186,907.46$            
Payroll Taxes, State and Federal 139,163.01$            
Transaction Privilege Taxes Collected Payable to State 17,465.99$              
Medical, Dental, Life, Vision payments 221,076.24$            

Electronic Payments 1,051,632.99$         

Total Warrants 1,512,618.99$         

















































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a.  

MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Holbrook Asphalt, LLC contract for CIP T-69: 
Pavement Preservation 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC (T-69)                     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 1 of 3 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory   None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve the contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, to clean, prepare and install HA5 high 
density mineral bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment for CIP T-
69 – Pavement Preservation, in an amount not to exceed $293,466.89 ($255,188.60, plus 
a 15% contingency of $38,278.29).  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff is requesting to use the Cooperative Contract (#2020007) through the City of Mesa, 
to clean, prepare and install HA5 high density mineral bond advanced performance 
pavement preservation treatment for CIP T-69 – Pavement Preservation. This work 
includes a five-year warranty, pavement markings and traffic control.  
 
The surface of the various locations throughout Florence are worn and in need of asphalt 
preservation.  The areas targeted for the Spring of 2021 are:  
 

 Exhibit A: Map (Anthem Unit 9, 17, 18, 22, 29, 54 and a section of North Spirit 
Loop)  

 Exhibit B:  Map (sections of Orlando Street, Elizabeth Street, Keating Street, 
Celaya Street, and Stewart Street)  

 Exhibit C:  Map (West Butte Avenue)  
 Exhibit D:  Santa Cruz Drive in Florence Gardens 

 



Subject:  Contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC (T-69)                     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

The HA5 product is a surface treatment designed to extend pavement life and protect the 
surface from moisture and UV rays.  HA5 installations are backed by a five-year warranty, 
and the life of the treatment is expected to be seven to ten years. 
 
The Town of Florence has the opportunity to purchase from a Cooperative Contract 
between Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, and the City of Mesa.  This contract was entered into on 
September 9, 2019, to provide HA5 high density mineral bond pavement preservation 
treatment.  This contract expires June 30, 2022. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would be delayed until the next fiscal year.  The asphalt 
pavement would continue to incrementally deteriorate.  As preventative maintenance is 
delayed the cost to maintain the streets is increased. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would occur as scheduled and the future costs would continue 
as projected. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, is $255,188.60, plus a 15% contingency 
($38,278.29), making the not to exceed amount $293,466.89. 
 
Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 4.4 Sole Source 
Purchases & Section 5.63 Purchases of $25,000 or more. 
 

4.4 Sole Source Purchase 
 

Departments may procure and contract for supplies and services without 
using competitive procedures when it is clearly determined to be impractical 
to procure through the competitive bidding process.   
 

5.632 Vendor Selection 
 
                   5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by necessity  
                               Or by the Town Manager as indicated by Emergency/Sole Source  
                               Purchase, Cooperative Purchase, State Contract or any other method 
                               Authorized.  
           
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 City of Mesa Contract #2020007 
 Sole Source 
 Exhibit #1 Holbrook Asphalt, LLC Scope of Work 



Subject:  Contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC (T-69)                     Meeting Date:  October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

 Exhibit A Map – Anthem Units 9, 17, 18, 22, 29, 54 and a section of North Spirit 
Loop 

 Exhibit B Map - Sections of Orlando, Elizabeth, Keating, Celaya and Stewart 
Streets  

 Exhibit C Map - Section of West Butte Avenue 
 Exhibit D Map - Santa Cruz Drive in Florence Gardens 
 Contract between Holbrook and the Town of Florence 

 







































































jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT 1







jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT A



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT B



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT C



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT D



1 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF CITY OF MESA, CONTRACT NO 2020007 TO 

PROVIDE HA5 POLYMER MODIFIED ASPHALT PAVING. 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 5th day of October, 2020 
(“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the “Town”), and Holbrook Asphalt 
(the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the 
“resultant contract” contemplated in City of Mesa Contract #2020007 to provide polymer modified 
asphalt paving. The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in this Contract collectively as 
the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, material, 
transportation services and equipment to provide polymer modified asphalt paving, per contract 
specifications described in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” 
(the “Goods” or “Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the 
schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the 
Master Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and Conditions, 
Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, Submittals and Attachments.  
Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish all of the 
equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide in a good and substantial manner, 
and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the Parties that 
should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the Master Contract, or the 
Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the provisions of the Contract Documents shall 
control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said 
Proposal conflicting herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and valuable 

consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative solicitation/contract City of 
Mesa Contract #2020007 is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master 
Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in 
terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: “City of Mesa”, 
“Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence; the terms: “Deputy 
Finance Director” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town Manager; and 
the terms: “Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be deemed 
to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  
 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract documents, which 
by reference are incorporated herein: 
 City of Mesa Contract #2020007 
 Sole Source 
 Exhibit #1 Holbrook Asphalt Scope of Work 
 Exhibit #2 Map – Anthem Units 9, 17, 18, 22, 29, 54 and a section of North Spirit Loop 
 Exhibit #3 Map - Sections of Orlando, Elizabeth, Keating, Celaya and Stewart Streets  
 Exhibit #4 Map - Section of West Butte Avenue 
 Exhibit #5 Map - Santa Cruz Drive in Florence Gardens 
 Contract between Holbrook and the Town of Florence 

 



2 
 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract Documents and 
Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Scope of Work) and shall not exceed 
$293,466.89 (Proposal $255,188.60 with a 15% contingency, $38,278.29). 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date through 
satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and acceptance of the Services 
and/or Goods by the Town.  
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with 

Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the Town  that the 

Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually obligated to 
comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and 
A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this 

Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor’s 

employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town 
in regard to any such inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records 

of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any random verification 
performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached 

the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or subcontractor establishes that it has 
complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor enters into 

with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under this Contract or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona 
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  If payment is to 

be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and progress reports which clearly 
indicate the progress to date and the amount of compensation due by virtue of that progress.  
All invoices shall be for Services completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 



3 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may terminate, 
suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s convenience without penalty 
or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for Services or Goods satisfactorily completed 
and accepted by Town, as determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods 
and/or Services requirements and schedule for payment. 
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an independent 
contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this Contract, and shall not be 
deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, or to have any other legal relationship 
with Town. 
 

11. NOTICES.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be deemed to 
have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified or registered mail, 
addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, 
Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Holbrook Asphalt, Mark Beatty, 3806 S. 16th Street, 
Phoenix, AZ 85040. 

 
12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its successors, 

assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Florence, 
its Mayor and Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees, 
from and against all demands, claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have 
resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of the Contractor, its 
agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors related to the Goods or Services 
in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
Town of Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives 
and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or destruction of 
property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the performance of this Contract including any 
employee of the Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. 
In consideration of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from 
the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to the requirements 
of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all Services will be performed in a good, 
workman-like and professional manner.  The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided 
by Contractor shall not relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods 
or Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, 
Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless 
otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be new, unused, of most current 
manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless 
otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published specifications. 
 



4 
 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing Policy (the “Policy”) 
govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by this reference. 
Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance with the Policy, including demonstrating 
its lawful presence in the United States. 

 
15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in 

accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference 
to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. The exclusive forum selected for any 
proceeding or suit in law or equity arising from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, 
Arizona. 
 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution 
of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of this 
Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the Effective Date 
set forth above. 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 

        
 

By: __________________________  Date:_________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
______________________________ 
Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________ Date:__________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         
 
           



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

Copy:  Department Heads 

Date:  October 5, 2020 

Re:  Town Manager’s Report  

 
COVID-19 Update: To be provided at the meeting. 
 
Community Vitality:  Amid the COVID-19 epidemic and social distancing requirements a 
lot has changed worldwide.  The Town of Florence has done its best to respond in a 
responsible but thoughtful way.  Although programs and services have been impacted the 
Town has added additional opportunities to address the needs of our citizens.     
1 
 

 
Recent event update: 
 

Library Division: 
 Library patrons may request materials to be placed on hold.  Patrons are called by 

Library staff once the requested materials are available.  This service is available 
Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to noon and 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. Materials 
are delivered curbside off of Main St.  Requests are limited to 10 items and library 
cards must be in good standing before making the request.  Requests for materials 
may also be made online through the library catalog via their website.  Or, with the 
new Pinal County Library District (PCLD) app on your smart phone.  

 
 Printer On service: This allows patrons to print directly to the Library’s printer system 

by utilizing the “Printer On” app or website directly from home (website address is 
https://bit.ly/38zBqxE ).  Documents are available during curbside Library hours for 
pickup.  The cost is 10 cents per page. 

 
 Ask-a-Librarian service:  Staff provides brief answers or suggested resources to a 

variety of questions.  The purpose of the service is to guide the user to appropriate 
information sources or services that can answer their research questions.  This 
service is available during curbside hours, by calling 520-868-8311, or by emailing 
library@florenceaz.gov 
 

 Books on Wheels: Users of the Congregate Meal program or Homebound Meal 
services through the Senior Center can now receive Library materials through this 
unique partnership at no additional cost to the Town.  
 

 Tutor On-Demand: This program is up and moving and for those interested please 
reach out to the Library.  
 



2 
 

 Copy Services: Patrons may request copies made during curbside hours.  Prices 
are 10 cents for single-sided, black and white copy and $1 for single-sided Color 
copy.  

 
 

Senior Center: 
 Meals - Pick-up meals are available to Senior Center Patrons from 11:30 a.m. until 

noon, Monday through Friday for those who call the center prior to Tuesday of the 
previous week.   
 

 Home-bound Meals - Seniors may qualify for lunch meals delivered by calling the 
senior center for details.  
 

 Shopping for Seniors - Senior Center staff shops for groceries at Coolidge Walmart, 
Safeway Anthem, Dollar General Store.  Staff also picks up prescriptions at 
Walmart, Sun Life and Safeway Pharmacies.  Those seniors who wish to be placed 
on this list just need to call the center.   
 

 Telephone Reassurance Program - Seniors are contacted daily with a well-check 
phone call.   

 
 Resources Information - Seniors may call the center and receive assistance with a 

variety of questions and issues.  Staff also offers recommendations to other 
available resources. 
 

 Staying Connected - Staff offers a variety of challenging daily activities (on paper) 
for seniors.  Challenges are completed, returned to senior center staff for review.  
Small prizes are awarded for winner of completions. 
 

 Give-A-Lift Program - While medical rides are limited at this time (absence of 
volunteers in the center), all ride requests are evaluated and offered on a case-by-
case basis.  
 

 Books on Wheels – In collaboration with the Library seniors can have media 
materials delivered to them.  
 

 Zoom Phone-In Bingo – Nothing like bingo and the Senior staff is getting creative.  
 

 Beat the Heat in the Park - Same as the Rec. division’s Yoga in the Park, but with 
seniors. The idea of getting the older population out and active.  
 

 Biscuits & Gravy began two Wednesday in the AM and is a program geared towards 
raising funds for the Senior Center’s meal program.  
 

 Friday Food Distribution is a partnership between the Police Dept. and Senior 
Center to handout food boxes to seniors without transportation or who are unable to 
attend the event in the park. Takes place the last Friday of each month.  

 
 



3 
 

Recreation Division: 
 

 Take and Make Kits - Contain various arts and crafts supplies for hours of 
enjoyment and artistic creativity.  Different kits are available for curbside pickup 
every Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  Participants register through the Town web 
site.  Fees vary according to that week’s theme.        
 

 Rec on the Go - An assortment of sports equipment designed to keep citizens active 
during COVID-19.   People call to request which item or items they wish to borrow.  
Items available include tennis rackets, horseshoes, pickle ball paddle, basketballs, 
footballs, soccer balls and more.  Equipment is available in two-hour increments, 
Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

 
 Durable Medical Equip. – Continues to be a success with many donations and 

equipment checkouts.  
 

 Over the Line – Tournament at Heritage Park with COVID-19 safety practices in 
place. Teams of three play each other at designated times to avoid gatherings. 
Winners get tee-shirts COVID RECkers. 
 

 Yoga in the Park – To get community members out and active Padilla Park will host 
Yoga in the Park. Staff will distance participants at least 6 ft. a part and instructors 
will ensure that all are wearing masks to and from class as well as temperature 
checks and health screenings.  All classes reached capacity.  
 

 Sand Volleyball – Teams of two will compete at Heritage Park. Again, focused on 
getting the community out and active with COVID-19 safety practices in place.  
 

 Historic Tour – The Rec. team re-released the Town’s historic video tour for 
community members to walk and see the sites.   
 

 Alphabet Hide-and-Go Seek – Letter and number tags are hidden around the 
community that provide an experience for participants to decode the hidden 
message. Geared toward the younger population and families. 
 

 Downtown Kiosk is being updated and it will showcase all of the projects completed 
by the Town within the Downtown area, Movies filmed in Florence, thank you to 
flower box participants and the Shop Local campaign  
 

 Take-a Hike Challenge - Participants must complete ten hiking trails in the area. All 
who participate get a tee-shirt.   
 

 Trick or Treat Down Main Street Drive-Through – This year the Rec. Division has 
creatively amended the Town’s typical Halloween to safeguard the community. 
Participants are encouraged to decorate their vehicles, themselves and participate 
in a drive-through event. Candy donations must be submitted at least three days in 
advance and will be pre-bagged.  All trunk or treat participants must wear gloves, 
masks and be temperature checked prior to handing out any pre-bagged candies.  
 



4 
 

 A Drive-in Movie was shown “Hocus Pocus” on Saturday (October 3rd) at the 
Community Services Building parking lot.  

 
Parks Maintenance  

 
 The Parks. Maintenance division began re-seeding select greenspace areas around 

Florence this past week. The Bark Park and Main St. Park needed additional work 
and have been closed. They will re-open by the end of October.  
 

 Two trees have been re-placed at Heritage Park and additional plants have been 
ordered for the Community Services and Town Hall facilities.   

 
Economic Prosperity:  I was informed on 9/20/2020 that the North Unit of the Arizona 
State Prison Complex is now closed and has no Inmates housed there.   The North Unit 
has a capacity of 996 inmates.  The Arizona State Prison Complex – Florence is down to a 
population of 2,510.  This complex includes the historic prison buildings as well as the 
North Unit, South Unit, and East Unit. 
 
As of the date of the Governor’s announcement for the closure of the ASPC-Florence 
complex in January, there were 3,589 inmates in the complex.  As of 9/29/2020, there are 
only 2,510 (-30.1%, but -9.7% over the last month). Staff are monitoring these numbers 
daily and have noted the continued downward trend. 
 
On a positive note, the Pinal County Unemployment Rate dropped from 10.9% in July to 
5.9% in August. It is believed that this is probably the single largest decline in our County 
History. 
 
Leadership and Governance:  It was requested that this report provide a look forward to 
future Town Council agenda items.  The following is a list of future items for potential Town 
Council action. This list is not intended to be comprehensive but represents important 
forthcoming items: 
 

 Regional Transportation Plan Update 
 Major General Plan Amendment (Grinders Sports) 
 Spirit Loop Ach Culvert 4.1 acceptance 
 Felix Road acceptance 
 Redevelopment Plan Update 
 Town Fee Schedule Update 
 General Plan Working Paper Number 1 
 Town Purchasing Code Update 
 T-Mobile License Agreement 
 Zayo License Agreement 

 
 
Partnerships and Relationships:      
 
In partnership with Pinal County and Paradigm Laboratories, free COVID-19 testing is 
being offered on Mondays and Wednesdays in Florence, at the Florence Community 



5 
 

Center.  Testing on Tuesdays in Florence is prioritized for Law Enforcement, Correctional 
Officers, EMS/Fire and Healthcare workers. 

 
Testing is via the Nasopharyngeal swab method for ages 5 years and up, and results are 
expected within 48 hours. 

 
Transportation and Infrastructure:  The Public Works Department has several projects 
ongoing but four are of particular interest.  
 

1. Florence ECO Station 
 Site plan under development. 
 Design Charette to be scheduled 

 
2. State Route 79B/287 Roundabout Project 

 Stage III Design (60% Plans) 
 Property appraisals underway 
 Historic Properties Treatment Plan submitted 
 

3. State Route 79/Gila River Bridge 
 Under design 
 Construction funding moved to 2023 
 Sewer Force Main Cost Estimate under review 
 

4. SMART Water Meter Installation 
 1,552 meters installed 
 LoRaWAN Network Working Well 
 Data Transfer to Water Smart 

 
 

Upcoming Events/Meetings/Forums:   
 
Date Time Event Host Venue  
Ends Oct. 9 Evening (Nightly 

Tues. – Thur.) 
Sand Volleyball Rec. Division Heritage Park 

Continuous Evenings (Nightly 
Tues – Thur.)  

Over the Line Rec. Division  Heritage Park  

Continuous Evenings (Mon. & 
Wed.)  

Yoga in The Park  Rec. Division Padilla Park  

Continuous Daily  Books on Wheels Library Division Library  
Oct. 9 6:00 PM C.S. Advisory 

Meeting 
C.S. Dept.  C.S. Building 

Oct. 3 6:00 PM Start Drive-in Movie Rec. Division CS Parking Lot 
Oct. 31 6:00 PM – 8:00 

PM  
Drive-Through 
Halloween 

Rec. Division  Main St.  

Each Wed. 7:00 AM Biscuits & Gravy Senior Division Senior Center 
  

 
Economic Outlook:   
Statewide: 
 
The impacts from the COVID-19 Pandemic are still being assessed, but the latest numbers 
were AGAIN way better than the State was projecting.  Overall, August Sales Tax 



6 
 

collections (which represent July sales activity) grew by 9.9% above August 2019 and were 
$54.3 million above the forecast.  The state’s Fiscal Year 2020 ended on June 30th.  After 
reviewing complete FY 2020 revenue data, the state's General Accounting Office is 
currently reporting the FY 2020 ending balance to be $373 million. While unanticipated 
during a pandemic, an addition of this size to the fund balance will enable Arizona to return 
to new economic heights quicker.  This is a very good thing for our state. 
 
Despite the pandemic, August 2020 Sales and Use Tax revenues came in 9.9% higher 
than last August.  Contracting continues to see dramatic increases, as it was up 21.2% over 
last year.   The only segment that seems to be struggling is Restaurant & Bars, which was 
14.3% less than last July. 
 

   
 

Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) collections of $137.5 million in August were 19.4% 
ABOVE the amount collected in August 2019 and $38.0 million above forecast.  Given less 
commuting, due to increased work-from-home arrangements across public and private 
sector employment, this boost is a welcomed and surprising increase.  Year-to-date HURF 
collection are 8.1% more than last year, and $61.5 million above the forecast. 
  
In July, Arizona’s 12-month total of single-family building permits was 35,747, or 2.7% more 
than last month, but 12.9% more than a year ago.   For Florence, the 12-month period 
ending on July 31st saw an increase of 73.5% in number of single-family building permits 
over the same period last year.   In July, Florence issued 49 SFR permits, and is continuing 
at a pace well ahead of the Arizona and Pinal County economy.  Valuations for these 
permits are at or near record levels.  While we budgeted for a decline in building in FY21, 
early signs show that the building is outpacing these conservative projections. 
  
Arizona’s correctional industry decreased in inmate population in August, with the 
continued closure and delay of new court proceedings.  The state saw a (-0.5)% decrease 
this month, and a (-7.8)% decrease since the end of last July.  This lower inmate population 
will affect Florence’s state shared revenues in the future.   
 
Current Advertisements: 
 
The following Requests for Proposals/Qualification are currently Open: 

1. None Currently 
 
The following Requests for Proposals/Qualifications are Under Review: 

1. None Currently 
 

 
 



 

   TOWN OF FLORENCE  
Community Development 

224 W. 20th Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 
 

SUBMITTED DATE:  September 28, 2020 
 
MEETING DATE:   October 5, 2020 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Larry Harmer, (Acting) Community Development Dir. 
 
SUBJECT:    Community Development Report  
1 
 

August 2020 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Building Safety Division 

A. Permits for August 2020 
a. New Single Family  76 (268 Year-to-Date: 35% increase from  

       2019) 
b. Manufactured Homes     1            
c. Commercial/Office/TI’s     4                 
d. Misc.    38       

Total              119  
B. Total Single-Family Residential valuation for August: $20,492,808.46 
C. Total Permit valuation for August: $21,453,975.15 
D. Current Builders:  

a. Pulte and DR Horton in Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
b. Wade Jurney Homes in Villa Adelaida  
c. Private custom 

 
We are pleased to inform the Town Council and public that we are now accepting on-line 
submittals for plan review and permits.  In addition, we are transitioning to electronic plan 
review.  This will allow an applicate to submit electronically and receive plan review 
comments in the same manner.  This is a significant advancement for a community the 
size of Florence and is exemplary of our continued efforts to improve customer service. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
Code Compliance Division 

A. Compliance Notices Issued August 15 – September 15, 2020 
a. Written        4    
b. Mitigated/Compliance     14     
c. On-going    24  
d. On-going older cases  11 
e. Referred to Town Attorney   6    
 
Types of Notices:  weeds, abandoned vehicles, illegally parked vehicles, motor 
homes and trailers, illegal campsites, general property maintenance 
 

RAD Service Orders: 
Town of Florence had 23 Bulk trash pickups 
Florence Gardens has 9 Bulk trash pickups 
Anthem had 55 bulk trash pickups 
 
Cemetery: 
Inquiries:   5 
Burials:      5 
Spaces Sold:  9  
 
Planning and Zoning Division 
 

A. Planning and Zoning Commission 
a. P/Z held a Public Hearing to receive testimony regarding the application for a 

Major General Plan amendment requested by Grinders Sports Group, Inc. on 
August 20, 2020.  A second hearing is scheduled for September 3, 2020.  After 
the 2nd hearing, the Commission may recommend approval or denial of the 
application to the Town Council. 

 
B. Historic Preservation Advisory Commission 

a. HDAC has not met since COVID-19 precautions have been put in place.  There 
have been no applicant-driven requests received.  Staff has been working on 
updates to the Historic Property Inventory with the State Historic Preservation 
Office.  The final report on the Certified Local Government grant was submitted 
in August. We are current waiting for SHPO’s review of the final report. 

 
 
 



3 
 

C. Special Projects 
a. Redevelopment Plan Update: 

The Town’s consultant is almost complete with the draft Land Use Plan and 
written document.  Staff has reviewed the preliminary interactive web-based 
interactive document that will ultimately be placed on the Town’s website.  We 
are in a position to initiate the final public meetings and hearings in the near 
future once Covid-19 precautions are relaxed … or we may look into conducting 
some form of on-line interactive public process.   

 
b. General Plan Update: 

The Town’s consultant, Michael Baker International, is proceeding with the 
preliminary work necessary to initiate presentations and community meetings 
that will be held once we are back to a “normal” existence. In the meantime, 
staff working with the consultant to consider an on-line process to solicit input 
from the public regarding the review of General Plan information and general 
questionnaire. 
 

D. Major General Plan Amendment: 
We have received an application for a Major General Plan Amendment 
application for properties in the vicinity of Judd and Felix Roads.  Staff  prepared 
the 60-Day Review documents as prescribed by Arizona Statutes and distribute 
them for external agency comments. Minimal comments have been received.  
The Town Council was introduced to the application at their June 15, 2020 
meeting and authorized the Town manager to begin Development Agreement 
discussions. Staff is also working with the applicant in anticipation of 
applications for annexation. The first Public Hearing scheduled for the Planning 
and Zoning Commission was held on August 20, 2020. The second Public 
Hearing is scheduled for September 3. 

 
 

 



Memorandum 

To:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

From:  Hezekiah Allen, Community Services Director 

Date:  September 1, 2020 

Re:  September 2020 Department Report 

Director’s Report 
Project Updates 

• Poston Butte Preserve – Council authorized the PA and HPTP to be signed, and 
Page 1 
Community Services 

September 2020 Monthly Report 

it was sent to BLM. The lease agreement has been reviewed by the Town 
Manager/Town Attorney and will be going to Council for consideration in October. 
J2 presented the current 60% design to Council and staff notated the comments 
received and will be meeting to discuss.   

Heritage Park 
• Wood Fiber has been installed at both play structures.  
• CARUSO TURLEY SCOTT STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS submitted their repair design, 

the staff has submitted to Planning Development and received a permit to proceed with 
repairs.  

• Parks M. removed two dead trees due to the heat and drip system issues. Staff 
will be planting saplings in their place and have repaired the drip system.  

Charles Whitlow Rodeo Grounds 
• The Posse began cleaning-up the grounds the week of the 8th, and Parks M., 

Public Works, and Posse members continued the clean-up on the 14th of Sept.  
• Staff is working with Development Services and the Posse on a solution within 

the budget for the electrical code issues at both structures.   
Special Events 

• Staff is moving forward on an innovative Drive-Through trick or treat program for 
Halloween. It will allow families to drive through Downtown receive candy from 
merchants and decorate their vehicles.  

• Staff will be starting up the Drive-In Movies first showing is Oct. 3 (Hocus Pocus)  
• The Posse was given the go-ahead on the Junior Parada (Rodeo) on an at-risk 

basis in case we see a rise in COVID-19 cases.  
Community Services Board 

• The first meeting is scheduled for Thursday, Oct. 8.  
Program Updates 

• The Tutor on Demand program is live!  
• Both the Home Improvement Meal Program ($600 Raised) and the 9/11 Public 

Safety Meal Program at the Senior Center were a success.  
Downtown 

• Staff reached out to Cathy Adams with the Museum to coordinate their request 
for the Kiosk Downtown. 



Page 2 
Community Services 

September 2020 Monthly Report 

Facilities: The Fitness Center is working with IT to convert to a 24-7 operation. Staff 
is also working with Facilities to freshen up space. The tentative plan is to open to 
the public in 2 months, providing case levels stay within reason.  
 
Continued Ed/Networking – APRA Director Round Table hosted Bob Brosheid (AZ 
State Parks Director). He updated the group on LWCF Grants. In years past, the 
program has distributed upwards of $4 million annually, and with the new legislation, 
this number will jump to $6-8 Million.  

 
 

August 2020 
 

Parks and Recreation Division Report 
Recreation/Aquatics/Special Events Programs 

Recreation Programs  Participants Revenue Notes 
Take and Make Activities 31 $144  
Take a Hike Challenge 27 $330  
Beat the Heat Dance 
Workout 

9  Free 

Yoga in the Park 9 $360 Body Awareness 
Yoga in the Park 18 $400 Slow Flow 
OTL League 1 $75  
2 on 2 Sand Volleyball 2 $150  

 
  

Senior Division Report 
Dorothy Nolan Senior Center 

Activity Monthly Total 
Sunlife Pharmacy performed by staff 1 
Safeway Anthem Shopping performed by staff 2 
Striving to Keep Seniors Connected 114 
Exercise with Rhoda- contactless  90 
Healthy Eating by Lou-contact less 33 
Congregate Meal Delivery (due to COVID 19)  444 
Home Delivered meals    388 
Delivered Food Boxes to vulnerable seniors 10 
Telephone Reassurance Calls (daily calls to vulnerable seniors) 320 
Friday’s hot meal provided by staff 68 
New Member 01 
Library Books (Deliver & Pick-up) 06 

 
Accomplishments: Due to COVID-19 all activities are still suspended.   
 
We delivered 444 meals to our local senior citizen, and 388 home-delivered meals to 
homebound seniors for a total August delivery of 832 meals.  
 
We traveled 406 miles, in combination with our 514 trips 
  



Page 3 
Community Services 

September 2020 Monthly Report 

The Give-A-Lift program provided 4 clients with Priority medical transportation resulting in 
37 trips, 26.25   hours, and 435 additional transportation miles. 3 staff assisted in providing 
these medical transportation rides when needed.  
 
Staff currently shops for groceries and medication for as needed.  
  
We continue striving to keep seniors connected with daily puzzles, seek, and find pictures, 
cards etc.  They enjoy doing the quizzes/ games we send out and enjoy the participation 
prize they receive.  We will be starting virtual BINGO and Jeopardy in September. 

 
Library Division Report 

Florence Community Library 
 
 
August Statistics  
 3,201 total items were circulated in August. 
 19 library cards were issued. 
 223 wireless sessions were held. 
 
New Services Statistics 
 759 total items were placed on hold in August. 
 224 patrons picked up items utilizing Curbside Pick Up 
 9 patrons printed and collected print jobs utilizing Printer On services 
 1 patron/s requested copy services utilizing the library copy machine 
 392 approximate incoming calls were received by library staff in August 
 3 patrons utilized Book on Wheels 
 61 views of Virtual Fall Storytime via the Florence Library and Community Center 

Facebook page 

 
August Activities  
*Library remained closed due to COVID-19.  
 
8/13/2020  Library Manager Gloria Moreno participated in the final “Be a Great Boss,” 
professional development webinar provided by the State Library. 
 
8/14/2020  Library Manager Gloria Moreno attended a webinar meeting of the Pinal 
County Library District. 
 
8/20/2020  Library Manager Gloria Moreno, Librarian Kaytlin Nolan, and Library 
Assistant Nicole Hernandez participated in, “Self-Care and Collaboration,” a 
professional development webinar provided by the State Library. 
 



FLORENCE MUNICIPAL COURT   MONTHLY REVENUE
 FOR THE MONTH OF:  AUGUST, 2020

No Distribution Type Account # Amount
801 Fines, Fees & Traffic School 010-340-575 15,383.70$           
802 Restitution 010-260-000
803 Justice Court Fee 010-203-000 57.06$                    
804 General Fund 010-340-499 50.90$                   
805 State Surcharges 010-204-000 9,584.85$               
806 PCSO Fund 010-203-100
807 Bonds  010-206-000 2,240.00$               
808 State Fines 010-250-038 2,967.43$               
809 State JCEF 010-202-000 412.87$                  
810 Over Payment Refund 010-206-100 74.50$                    
811 Florence Police Fund 010-338-486 936.54$                 
812 Local JCEF 532-350-573 222.31$                 

813 Jail Housing Fees 010-340-489 3,125.30$               
814 Domestic Violence Assessment 010-340-576
816 Public Defender Fee 010-340-578 115.24$                  
819 ZFAR1 010-202-500 1,940.75$               
820 ZFAR2 010-202-501 448.23$                  
823 DPS 010-203-300 $0.42
824 Victims Rights Enforcement 010-209-000 492.21$                  
821 Tribal 010-203-200

COUNTY REVENUE (JP FEE) 57.06$                    
PCSO REVENUE -$                         
STATE REVENUE 15,846.34$            
TOWN REVENUE 19,908.49$           
RESTITUTION AND BONDS 2,240.00$              
          LESS BOND TRANSFER
TRIBAL REVENUE -$                         
VARIOUS PD AGENCIES $0.42

TOTAL MONTHLY REVENUE: 38,052.31$        

Finance: ____________________

Court:   _____________________











Fire Department 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M   

  
 

DATE:      September 14, 2020 
 
TO:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
  
FROM: David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 

SUBJ: Summary of August 2020  
 

Florence Fire Department Fire Response Zones  
 

 



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Response District Boundaries and Fire Station Locations 

 



 



 
 

 

 



Summary of August 

 
Members of Florence Fire met with representatives of the Florence Hospital on several 
occasions recently to discuss EMS training, quality assurance program management, 
and pharmacy restocking procedures. Our partnership with them continues to 
strengthen and expand. We are in the process of replacing Dr. Gary Smith as our EMS 
Program Administrator with another Doctor from Florence Hospital. An announcement is 
forthcoming. 

A PowerPoint presentation introducing the Florence Fire Department to individuals 
running for Town Council was completed by the Fire Chief and submitted to Town 
Administration.  

The Fire Department is working with a company called Compliance Engine to obtain 
data entry information confirming all businesses in Florence that have fire protection 
systems and the venders that service them. Once established, this company will provide 
information regarding annual testing and compliance with Town of Florence fire code 
requirements.  

Florence CERT has been deployed on multiple occasions recently while continuing their 
regular training program. This group provides invaluable services to the Florence Fire 
Department and have quickly become an integral part of our organization.  

The Fire Prevention Division continues to work with Pinal County on two major projects: 
The Attorneys Building and the Community Development Building. Construction on both 
projects are well underway and are rapidly being completed.     

A Correctional Facility Onsite Self Inspection and Response Guide Checklist was 
development for 2020 annual Inspections.  

Events   

No Events COVID -19 restrictions.   

Training 

Much of our focus on training continues to be related to the completion of the Online 
Blue Card Emergency Management program. In addition: 

• One fire fighter completed the Florence Fire Department Driver Operator Packet. 
Six more members are finalizing this process.   

•  Four firefighters completed National Fire Academy Online S130-S190 wildland 
training course.  



 

 

Special Projects- COVID-19 

• We continue to work closely with Florence PD and PCSO with information 
sharing during the COVID-19 process.  

• Staff continues to evaluate and revise our response model to correctional 
facilities.  

• Staff continues working with our Public Works department to identify roads with 
residential properties found to have fire access restrictions.   

• Staff attended weekly web meetings and COVID-19 updates with the Pinal 
County Emergency Operations Center (EOC). The EOC continues to do a great 
job providing the fire department with the necessary personal protective 
equipment (PPE).  

• Fire crews continue to run COVID patients.  We are monitoring our supply of 
PPE and working with the EOC and distributers to maintain our normal operating 
supplies and PPE.  Firefighter Chris Robison is working diligently with distributers 
to navigate new ordering protocols and forecasting burn rates to prepare future 
ordering when quantities are not available.  

• Wildland PPE and equipment is arriving and will be put into service pending 
inservice familiarization training. We continue working with State Forestry with 
fee schedules and cost recovery documentation. 
 

Monthly billing for AMR Ambulance Service was completed for the month of July and 
requests were sent to Finance for billing to be sent out. The following is what was 
requested to be billed: 

o $1,806.00 for the 129 transports that AMR did for our patients. (July Calls) 
o $1,234.68 for the 12 patients that were transported with a Fire Dept. Rider 

to the hospital for continuity of care for the patient. (July Calls) 
o $1,423.82 for the monthly lease agreement for AMR’s use of Station #2 

facilities. (Oct. Bill) 
o AMR recently announced that they would be moving back to the hospital 

as soon as October 1, 2020.  

The fire department received multiple phone calls and public emails in August from 
individuals and insurance companies trying to determine if the Florence Fire 
Department responded to their location with fire service. These requests occur on a 
regular basis. 

We were successful in the second round of AEMS grant funding to receive two 
additional cases of Clear Gear Spray.  The procurement process was utilized to secure 
the vendor to purchase the LUCAS Device from the first round of AEMS Grant funding.   



The EMS Committee is working through completion of RSI Training to obtain the 
medications through Florence Hospital.  Air Evac assisted with the training and 
refreshing the crews on procedures.  Capt. Usher is working to finalize training trackers 
for certification of our EMS providers in conjunction with our yearly continuing education 
program.   

Assistance to Firefighter (AFG) COVID 19 supplemental grant awards are starting to be 
released.  We have not received news yet on the PAPR devices that we put in to 
receive.  AFG has also started awarding the original Safety Equipment grants that we 
put in for Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA’s). 

Work on a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant for the Town of Florence began in August. If 
approved, this grant will be a multi-year, phased project that addresses structures in the 
flood plain within the jurisdictional boundaries of Florence.  This project was discussed 
with Pinal County Emergency Management and will be included in the next Pinal 
County Hazard Mitigation Plan. This plan is updated every 5 years and the next update 
process begins later this year.  

 

 



 

 
 

   

 

1 
 

August 2020 
FLORENCE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 

 
 
Bruce Walls, Chief of Police 
425 N. Pinal Street., 
P.O. Box 988 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Phone: 520-868-7681 
 

 



 

 

2 
 

 
Florence Police Department Monthly Report 
August 2020 

The information contained in this report outlines significant information and activity 
within the Florence Police Department (FPD) during the month. The monthly report is 
prepared for the Town Council’s review and furthermore for the use by FPD to examine 
the current activity within the department and community to identify short-term and 
long-term needs, and to develop plans for improvement to provide the highest level of 
service.  
 

 
 
 

“The men and women of the Florence Police Department stand firm in our pursuit for justice and 
public trust. We will stay true to our mission of providing service and safety to our community with 
honor, respect, and integrity. We are committed to providing fair and equal treatment to those we 

encounter.” 



 

 

3 
 

PERSONNEL 
 

Employee Position Effective 
New Hire 

None   

   

Resignations/Terminations 

Keith Nixon Officer 8/2020 

   

Vacancies 

4 Full-time 3 Officers Open continuous 

2 Full-time Dispatcher Open continuous 

Cadet Seagraves continues training in Academy. Officers C. Salazar, Hall and Byrne continue through 
FTO.    

CHIEF OF POLICE 
Chief of Police, Bruce Walls attended the following meetings during the month: 
 
 Town Council Meetings 
 Management Team Meetings 
 East Regional Advisory Committee Meeting) 
 Executive Board for Arizona Counter Terrorism Information Center (ACTIC) 
 Public Safety Coordination Conference Call (Daily) 
 Fire and Police Communications Meeting 
 Pinal County Law Enforcement Association (PCLEA) Meeting 
 Radio Encryption Meeting 
 Brady List Meeting 
 Bridge Forum Meeting (Herozona) 
 Understanding Implicit and Explicit Bias Training 
 Fleet Management Meeting 
 Hells’ Angels Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

4 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE/SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The Support Services area includes the following: Communications Division, Evidence 
and Property, Crime Scene Investigator, Records Division, Departmental 
Budget/Finances and Public Information-Media. 
 
Support Services Manager, Deanna Husk had the following monthly activities: 
 
 Employee Evaluations 
 ALEAP Meeting 
 Pinal County Law Enforcement Association (PCLEA) Meeting 
 Review of polices (on-going) 
 Laserfiche project (on-going) 
 Understanding Implicit and Explicit Bias Training 
 Webpage Design Meeting 
 Mission Statement/Core Values Meeting 
 Department Training Meetings 
 Youth Services Meeting 
 Volunteer Meeting 

 
Communications: The Dispatch Supervisor had the following monthly activities: 
 
 Held testing and oral boards for new applicants 
 Communications IGA Meeting 
 Police and Fire Communications Meeting 
 Reviewed Communications Hiring Procedures 
 Channel 1 Encryption Meeting 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

5 
 

Calls for Service 
Below is a table that depicts the total calls for service handled by FPD Dispatchers during the 
month. The numbers are shown by the incident locations and how the incident was reported. 
 

How Calls Are Received, Totals by How Received 
 Beat A Beat B Beat C TOTAL 
911 Line 33 14 47 94 
Crime Stop Line 0 0 0 0 
Officer Report 156 76 152 384 
In Person 10 2 1 13 
Radio Transmission 2 1 0 3 
State TT/NLETS 1 0 0 1 
Telephone 126 45 94 265 
TOTAL 328 138 294 760 

 
 

Average Response Time to Calls for Service 
 

6 Month Reporting Period: March 2020 to August 2020 
 Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug 
Priority 1 4:56 6:01 5:59 5:02 5:06 6:10 
Priority 2 6:37 6:38 7:01 7:00 7:03 7:02 
Priority 3 17:17 19:02 23:39 14:41 18:49 21:23 
Priority 4 43:14 7:27 0:12 00:10 00:15 01:15 

Definitions: 
Priority 1 These priorities are those in which there is an imminent danger to life or 

major damage/loss to property or an in progress or just occurred major 
felony. 

Priority 2 These priorities are those in which a crime in progress might result in a 
threat of injury to a person, or major loss of property or immediate 
apprehension of a suspect. 

Priority 3 These priorities are those in which there is no threat of personal injury or 
major loss of property. 

Priority 4 These priorities are those of a report nature only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

6 
 

Uniformed Crime Reporting (UCR) 
 

Classification of Offense Offenses 
Reported 

Unfounded 
Complaint 

Actual 
Offense 

Offenses 
Cleared 

Juvenile 
Clearance 

CRIMINAL HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Murder/Non-Neg Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Manslaughter by Negligence 0 0 0 0 0 
      
FORCIBLE RAPE 0 0 0 1 0 
a. Rape by Force 0 0 0 1 0 
b. Attempt Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 
      
ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Firearm 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Other Dangerous Weapon 0 0 0 0 0 
d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 0 0 0 0 0 
      
ASSAULT 8 0 8 2 1 
a. Firearm 1 0 1 1 1 
b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Other Dangerous Weapon 0 0 0 0 0 
d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 2 0 2 0 0 
e. Other Assaults – Simple 5 0 5 1 0 
      
BURGLARY 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Unlawful Entry/No Force 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Attempt Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 
      
LARCENY – THEFT 1 0 1 0 0 
      
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Autos 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Other Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 
GRAND TOTAL 9 0 9 2 1 
Officers Assaulted 0     
Clearance(s) by Adult Arrest 1     
Clearance(s) by Juvenile Arrest 1     
Arson Cases 0     

**All data presented in this report is tentative. 
 
 



 

 

7 
 

Property & Evidence 
During the month, there were 94 envelopes/packages involved in 31 incident cases that were 
submitted for processing by the Property & Evidence Section. Of the total envelopes/packages: 
Total evidence items: 76 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
0 69 6 1 
Total safekeeping items: 13 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
13 0 0 0 
Total disposal items: 4 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
0 4 0 0 
Total found items: 1 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
0 1 0 0 

 

The items of evidence involved the following crimes: 
  8 drug incidents 

  2 DUIs 
 

Other considerations: 
  The status of the Police Evidence Trust Fund bank account, involving $18,899.70. 

  13 pending items:  
o 6 are for safekeeping/found property 
o 6 are pending RICO forfeiture/evidence 
o 1 is to be returned to owner, if located 

  Due to COVID-19 protocols, four fingerprints were conducted by Evidence Section during 
the month of August for Town of Florence employees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

8 
 

Operations/Patrol 
Professional Standards 
 
 1 administrative investigation completed 
 2 administrative inquiries completed 
 2 “Use of Force” incidents reported 

 

Criminal Investigations Unit 
 

Observed Offense Assigned Detective Case Status Notes 
# of new cases assigned this month: 12 

Sex Offense x3 (Juveniles) D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Suspect Arrested, additional victims have 
come forward, 5 Forensic Interviews, search 
warrant on vehicle, additional evidence 
recovered at reported crime scene. Years of 
sexual abuse disclosed. 

Information D. Helsdingen Closed Town Issue. 

Child Abuse D. Helsdingen Closed 

Forensic Interview on child completed. 
Officer will be submitting charges-
misdemeanor. 

Domestic Violence  D. Helsdingen Closed 
Patrol handling the charges, victim 
interviewed. 

Suicidal Subject D. Helsdingen TOT 
Related to Sex Offense case. Subject taken 
to Horizon. 

Sex Offense (Juvenile) D. Helsdingen Closed 

Victim reported being sexually abused in 
2018 when she was a juvenile. Waiting on 
victim for additional information. 

Sex Offense (Juvenile) D. Helsdingen TOT 

Related to 1st case. Juvenile reported being 
sexually abused at same residence as the 
original case.  DCS will be handling this 
disclosure.  

Sex Offense D. Helsdingen Closed Victim did not want assistance. 

Child Abuse D. Helsdingen Closed 

Forensic Interview of Child in Phoenix. No 
disclosure. Child’s U/A was positive for 
marijuana and methamphetamine. Patrol to 
file charges. 

Death Investigation D. Helsdingen Closed Suicide/note left. 

Child Abuse D. Helsdingen Closed 
Forensic Interview of child no disclosure 
TOT to DCS. 

Aggravate Assault with a 
Deadly Weapon & 
Attempted First Degree 
Murder (DV) J. Ballard/D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Single gunshot wound to victim. Search 
Warrant on residence completed. 
Additional warrants to follow on electronic 
devices.  

# of cases carried over into this month: 5 

Robbery (BANK) D. Helsdingen OPEN 

US Bank was robbed on 2/29/20. Video 
footage and still photographs of suspect 
obtained, evidence at scene collected, 
working with FBI. Person of Interest 
arrested in California. Fingerprints of 



 

 

9 
 

suspect given to FBI for comparison. 
Contacted FBI, still waiting on comparison. 

Sex Offense x2 D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Victim from previous Horizon case provided 
additional information. 2nd victim has come 
forward with an allegation. 

Promote Prison 
Contraband- Narcotic 
Drugs & Prescription Pills D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Inmate found with over 13 grams of Heroin 
and 30 narcotic pills possible fentanyl. 
Received DPS report positive for fentanyl, 
Felony charges filed. 

Sex Offense (Juvenile) D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Suspect identified, forensic interview 
completed, cell phone download 
completed. PCSO has been unable to locate 
suspect. 

Hit & Run Fatality  D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Suspect in custody, $200,000 bond. Second 
Degree Murder Charges Approved, 
investigation on-going. 

# of joint cases worked this month: 2 
Observed Offense Primary/Secondary 

Detective 
Case Status Notes 

Sex Offense (Juvenile) 
L. Gaston/D. 
Helsdingen OPEN 

Several juvenile females disclosed 
inappropriate sexual abuse. Grand Jury 
indictment added 3 more child related 
offenses. 

Sex Assault/Sex Abuse 
L. Gaston/D. 
Helsdingen OPEN 

Suspect currently in custody awaiting 
extradition.  Conducting follow-up for 
evidence.   
 

Other activity: 
Detective  
D. Helsdingen Grand Jury x2 
D. Helsdingen Forensic Interview x6 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

10 
 

BEAT A 
 

 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat A Supervisor: Sgt. D. Peterson 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat A 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 301 
Total number of traffic stops: 84 
Total number of accident reports: 2, both on private property 
Total number of citations issued: 7 for 10 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against persons 
Inappropriate Conduct: 1 
 
Property crimes 
Criminal damage: 2 
Theft: 1 
 
 



 

 

11 
 

Monthly Activities 
Total calls for service for the month were 301. Person crimes totaled zero. Property crimes totaled 
one. Property crimes totaled three. Officers in Beat A conducted Directed Patrols in the areas of 
previously reported crimes. Officers also conducted Field Interviews of persons throughout Beat A 
and inquired if there was any knowledge of any crimes being committed. The Directed Patrols and 
Field Interviews were utilized to gather information/suspects and also to provide a presence in the 
community to help deter additional crimes. 
 
In addition to normal patrol, officers also conducted 226 directed patrols of businesses, apartment 
complexes, Florence Gardens and Caliente communities, and the prisons. 
 
Community Involvement and Education 
Area schools have reopened for a few students on-site with most attending via online courses. 
Officers continued their visits to schools and grounds to prevent and/or detect any crimes.  
 
Special Events 
None 
 
Upcoming Special Events 
None  
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Sex Offense reported on Desoto Street – A male disclosed that a couple of years ago, when he was 
14 years old, he had a sexual relationship with a 14-year-old female at this location. The case is 
under investigation.  
 
Other reported Sex Offense was previously reported in Beat C. 
 
Two assaults occurred in the prisons. 
 
Theft reported on E. Arizona Circle – A female reported that a fire pit was removed from her yard 
by an unknown person without permission or authority to do so. There are currently no suspects or 
leads in this case.  The fire pit was valued at $50.00. 
 
Criminal Damage reported on S. Pinal Parkway – A woman reported that she parked her vehicle in 
her apartment complex parking lot and when she returned, she had a flat tire. Investigation 
revealed that someone had cut the sidewall of her car tire. No suspects at this time. 
 
Criminal Damage reported on E. Diversion Dam Road -   A male reported that he parked in front of 
his friend’s home and went inside. When he returned to his vehicle, he observed two flat tires and 
spray paint on his windshield. This case is being investigated.  
 
Private Property Accident reported on E. Stewart Street – As a male was pulling into a parking 
space in the apartment complex, he struck the vehicle in the next parking space. The other 



 

 

12 
 

vehicle’s owner was notified. Both owners exchanged information and notified their insurance 
providers. 
 
Private Property Accident reported on N. Pinal Street – A male driver advised that as he was 
backing into a parking space, he struck another parked vehicle. The other driver was on scene. 
There were no injuries reported and the drivers exchanged information. 
 
Training 
Daily updates COVID-19, Protest Bulletins, Indian Country Training (video lessons) and Conflict 
Resolution Training (video lesson). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

13 
 

BEAT B 
 

 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat B Supervisor: Sgt. D. Campbell 
There are 5 officers assigned to Beat B 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 128 
Total number of traffic stops: 104 
Total number of accident reports: 1 
Total number of citations issued: 3 for 3 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against persons 
Other: 8 
 
Property crimes 
Other: 2 
 
 
 



 

 

14 
 

Monthly Activities 
During the month of August, crime decreased in Beat B. Criminal damage incidents dropped from 3 
last month to 0 this month. Civil citations also dropped from July. Citations were issued for 
speeding, expired registration, vehicles not having mandatory insurance, passing a stop sign and 
driving without a license. 
 
Community Involvement and Education 
During the month of August, Beat B officers completed a total of 89 directed patrols. Officers 
routinely made citizen contacts at open businesses. 
 
Special Events 
None due to COVID restrictions. 
 
Upcoming Special Events 
None due to COVID restrictions. 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
There were two domestic violence incidents reported. Both were verbal arguments in which one of 
the parties voluntarily left the scene to keep the peace. No injuries, no threats. 
 
Training 
FPD Officers were provided information on local events to include providing them with daily 
briefings on recent intelligence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

15 
 

BEAT C 

 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat C Supervisor: Sgt. S. Morris 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat C 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 265 
Total number of traffic stops: 99 
Total number of accident reports: 7, 1 fatal and all others being minor in nature 
Total number of citations issued: 22 for 32 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against persons 
Sexual assault: 1 
Other (Domestic): 3 
 
Property crimes 
Criminal damage: 3 
 
 
 
 



 

 

16 
 

Monthly Activities 
TLO activity – All intel bulletins received have been placed into the Intelligence File on the Q Drive 
for officers to review.   
 
For the month of August, the total calls for service was 265, compared to 280 in July. A 5.36% 
decrease. No influx of major crime. A total of 159 directed patrols were conducted. Traffic 
enforcement consisted of 99 traffic offenses, 22 citations with 32 violations. 
 
The speed signs logged the following data: 
 No data was obtained due to the computer with radar program installed being down. 

  
The Juvenile Detention Log was completed as required by state law. The Florence Police 
department detained one juvenile for the month of August.  
 
The Victim Services Unit was not utilized this month. Due to the COVID-19 virus all volunteer 
activities have been suspended until further notice. 
 
Community Involvement and Education 
The Beat Three officers continue to look for code enforcement violations and enforced 9 parking 
violations. Sgt. Morris’ shift assisted with a Food Bank Drive at Heritage Park on August 29th.  
 
Special Events 
None 
 
Upcoming Special Events 
None 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
N. Spyglass Dr. – A husband and wife were involved in a verbal confrontation at which time the 
wife slapped her husband and pushed him. The wife was arrested for Assault DV and confined at 
PCSO.  
 
W. Victory Way – A son-in-law went over to his in-law’s house and got into an argument over 
money. The son-in-law got angry and assaulted his mother and father in-law. The mother-in-law 
suffered a fractured vertebra in her back. The son-in-law was located by deputies and he was 
confined at PCSO for Aggravated Assault DV.  
 
N. Yeager Rd. – A boyfriend and girlfriend got into a physical altercation. The report came in third 
party so a victim has yet to come forward. Case pending.  
 
W. Millerton Way – A 17-year-old girl had her Snapchat account hacked and started receiving  
threatening messages. The snapchat had sexually explicit photos of her on it. Case still active.  
 
W. Candlewood Way – Allegations of a 7 year old being sexually abused by his paternal father. Case 
still active. 



 

 

17 
 

 
Merrill Ranch/Sun City Blvd. – Unknown persons damaged two political signs valued at $100. No 
suspects or witnesses. 
 
Trenton Way/Imperial Dr. – An unknown person(s) took the parks bike rack and placed it on top of 
the parks jungle jim. Value to replace bike rack $200. 
 
W. Merrill Ranch Pkwy – An unknown person threw a large brick through the window of the snack 
bar. Replacement of window is $500. 
 
A motorcyclist was traveling south on Attaway Road on his 2007 BMW when a farm worker crossed 
the road in front of him in a 2013 Chevy Silverado causing the motorcycle to collide with the truck. 
The motorcyclist did not survive the crash. Driver of truck cited in the accident. 
 
Training 
Officer uniforms and vehicles were inspected this month, with no discrepancies noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

18 
 

K-9 Unit 
How many officers assigned to K-9 Unit: 1 - K-9 Murphy 
Total number of vehicle stops: 19 
Total number of K-9 utilizations: 1 
Total number of vehicle hand searches: 4 
Total amount of narcotic seizures in weight: 4.1 grams 

Type of drug: Narcotic Weight: 2 grams 
Type of drug: Prescription drugs Weight: n/a 
Type of drug: Paraphernalia # of items: 1 individual item 
Type of drug: U.S. Currency Amount $0.00 

Monthly Activity: 
Officer Murphy attended K9 detection training every other week with the Pinal County Sheriff’s 
Office K9 Unit Training Unit & conducted in house training. Officer Murphy’s service dog Rexo, 
detected marijuana, cocaine, methamphetamine and heroin without incident. Officer Murphy is 
certified through the (NCAT) National Canine Audit Tracking Systems using K9 Rexo.       
 
During the month of August , Officer Murphy self-initiated (73) cases which included vehicle  
stops, field interviews, call for service, on-view criminal activity and assisting other officers.  
 
Shots Fired: Officer Murphy assisted Officer Ballard and Detective Helsdingen with an attempted 
murder case #F20080720 that occurred on 8/25/2020 at 129 N. Silver Street. The suspect was 
detained, questioned, arrested and booked into jail for the charges.  
 
Traffic Stop: Officer Murphy conducted a traffic stop on a vehicle at 4900 S. Pinal Parkway Avenue 
for multiple traffic violations. During the traffic stop the driver was found to not have a valid 
driver’s license. Consent to search the vehicle was provided resulting in finding 2.0 grams of 
methamphetamine in a backpack in the back seat along with a glass methamphetamine pipe. The 
backpack had paperwork inside of it belonging to another individual who was not in the vehicle. 
The drugs and paraphernalia were seized and transported to Florence P.D. where it will be 
destroyed.   
 
Traffic Stop: Officer Murphy attempted to conduct a traffic stop on a motorcycle traveling East on 
W. Merrill Ranch Pkwy and Hunt Hwy for speed greater than prudent. The motorcycle sped away at 
an extremely high rate of speed to include running a stop sign. Officer Murphy did not pursue and 
deactivated his lights and sirens only to observe the motorcycle run a second stop sign and 
continued eastbound at a speed greater than 100 miles per hour. Officer Murphy moments later 
observed the motorcyclist had attempted to brake to slow down and lost control of the motorcycle 
and ultimately crashed in the westbound lanes of W. Merrill Ranch Pkwy just west of N. Felix Road. 
The driver was transported to the hospital with non-life threatening injuries. Charges have been 
submitted for approval. 

 

Volunteers 
The Victim Services Unit was not utilized this month. Due to COVID-19, all volunteer activities have 
been suspended until further notice.  

 



 

 

19 
 

Grants 
DUI Task Force and other scheduled statewide patrols cancelled due to COVID. Agency discretion 
for details and localized saturation and enhanced patrols. 
The following are statistics reported to GOHS for both special events and sustained (regular) 
activity: 
Total citations for the month: 89 
Total traffic contacts for the month: 389 

 

Type of Citation Total Number of Citations 
Civil traffic 85 
Criminal traffic 1 
DUI 0 
DUI drugs 0 
Other (CT, CR, CV) 3 
 

 

Training 
Efforts are continually made by the training staff to incorporate and provide quality training to all 
FPD officers. FPD staff has worked diligently to reduce training costs by providing required internal 
training.  

 

Traffic 
Total number of citations issued for the department: 32 for 45 violations 

 

Directed Patrol 
The Police Department conducted 474 directed patrols during the month. Directed patrols are a 
proactive, police-initiated, approach which focuses patrol resources on the places with highest risks 
of serious crime to increase crime prevention. Statistics have proven that an increased pro-active 
patrol in high crime areas has decreased crimes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

20 
 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS/COMMENDATIONS/KUDOS 
 
 

 

 
Congratulations Belinda Sichling 15 years of service to the Town of Florence 


	October 5, 2020 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	6. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Resolution No. 1746-20 Grinders Sports Group Inc MGPA
	6b. Light TH Purple for DV Awarenesss MO
	6c.  Fire Prevention Week 2020 Proclamation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Resolution No. 1751-20 GRIC Grant
	7b. Resolution No. 1752-20  Accept Grant for HIstorical Society
	7c. Poston Butte Lease Agreement BLM
	7d. Homeland Security Grant
	7e. Returning Stronger Grant Awards (Round 1)
	7f. Warrant Register

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. Holbrook Contract

	9. MANAGER'S REPORT
	10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	10a. Community Development Report
	10b. Community Services Report
	10c. Courts Report
	10d. Finance Report
	10e. Fire Report
	10f. Police Report


	2912-1: AZA-037401-01
	2912-2: 
	2912-3: 
	2912-4: 20
	2912-5:                                                                       Town of Florence                                                                      P.O. Box 2670                                                                      Florence, AZ 85132                                                                      
	2912-6: together with an option to purchase during the term of the lease upon a showing of substantial compliance with the approved plan of development designated in Section 4(a).                                                                           Gila and Salt River Meridian, Arizona                                                                                          T. 4 S., R. 9 E.,                                                                                               sec. 26, that portion of the NW¼ lying north of the railroad right-of-way AZPHX-86615;                                                                                                sec. 27, N½NW¼. 
	2912-7:      200
	2912-8:     25
	2912-9:  0.00
	2912-10:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            Poston Butte Preserve Recreation Park 
	2912-11: 2019 Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan
	2912-12: 11/01/2019
	2912-b1: 5
	2912-b2: EXHIBIT A: Civil Rights Act of 1964 StipulationsEXHIBIT B:  Additional Terms and ConditionsEXHIBIT C:  Project map
	2912-b5: 
	2912-b7: Field Manager, Lower Sonoran Field Office
	2912-b8: 


